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(Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited)

KY1-1104
309GT
(P.0. Box 309GT, Ugland House, South Church Street, George Town, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands)

03 6775 1203

NB

(Nikko AM Offshore Funds — NEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund)

10 1,448

1,000
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144 .81
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UFJ

https://www.sc.mufg.jp/products/trust/index.html

Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited

UFJ
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2017 18

LLC

Neuberger Berman Investment
Advisers LLC

)
2003 26

)

() 2025
2025 480,000 6,951
14481 480,000 14481
1,000,000 1,000,000 4,481
)
2003 26
2009 27

)
2025

EC2V 5DE 480,000 100.00
40

Nikko AM Global Holdings (40 Basinghall Street, London EC2V 5DE,
Limited United Kingdom)

1925
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TOPIX
JPX
JPX

MSCI-KOKUSAI

MSCI Inc.

MSCI Inc.

MSCI

MSCI Inc.

MSCI Inc.

NOMURA-BPI
FTSE

FTSE Fixed Income LLC FTSE Fixed Income LLC

FTSE Fixed Income LLC

JP GBI-EM

J.P. Morgan Securities LLC

J_P. Morgan Securities LLC
3.3
0.015
15,000
0.65 0.30 0.35
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0.08 2.5
0.07 2.5
0.06

80,000

0.05

0.65

180,000

FATCA/CRS 1,500

2025 28

14,998
341,004
161,289

26,231
341,004

XV
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2038

15

180,000

20

2038

20

20

143,986
20 15
15
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20 15
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2025
14,320,120.18 26.52
13,576,633.53 25.14
5,792,106.98 10.73
4,106,206.06 7.60
3,744,243.55 6.93
3,673,343.27 6.80
2,665,570.36 4.94
1,716,733.10 3.18
1,347,792.11 2.50
1,159,614_94 2.15
950,818.48 1.76
619,959.61 1.15
107,554.00 0.20
53,780,696.17 99.60
213,738.38 0.40
53,994,434 .55
7,818,934,067 100.00
2025
ORANGE SA /EUR/
REGD V/R /PERP/ 5.913 217?8 2,800,000 106.01| 2,968,305.69|125.22| 3,506,261.09 6.49
REG S EMTN
BP CAPITAL
MARKETS PLC 2174
JEUR/ REGD V/R 7.034 ~ 2,276,000 | 112.65| 2,563,862.69|116.54| 2,652,547.97 4.91
/PERP/ REG S
SOUTHERN CO 2081
JEUR/ REGD V/R 1.875 15 2,329,000| 105.20 | 2,450,168.16|112.30| 2,615,530.94| 4.84
TOTALENERGIES SE
/EUR/ REGD V/R 2174
JPERP/ REG S 5.247 25 2,269,000 91.08| 2,066,601.89|112.55| 2,553,738.82 4.73
EMTN SER NC7
ENGIE SA /EUR/
REGD V/R /PERP/ 5.588 21714 2,000,000 | 107.73| 2,154,672.01|122.98| 2,459,563.71 4.56
REG S SER
IBERDROLA
FINANZAS SAU
/EUR/ REGD V/R 4.247 21728 2,000,000 108.28| 2,165,590.36|119.40| 2,388,001.80| 4.42
/PERP/ REG S
EMTN
VODAFONE GROUP
PLC REGD V/R SER 4.125 2081 2,460,000 80.91| 1,990,507.02| 91.27| 2,245,132.09 4.16
NC10
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BRITISH
2081
TELECOMMUNICATIO 4.25 1 23 2,018,000 90.17| 1,819,685.07| 98.06| 1,978,798.53 3.66
REGD V/R REG S
ENBRIDGE INC 2077
5.5 1,809,000 102.68| 1,857,418.02| 99.17| 1,793,995.07 3.32
REGD V/R 15
ELECTRICITE DE
FRANCE SA /GBP/ 2173
10 8.4688 1,300,000 | 148.54| 1,931,052.34]136.88| 1,779,429.29 3.30
REGD V/R /PERP/ 29
EMTN
VOLKSWAGEN INTL
FIN NV /EUR/ 2173
11 6.546 1,300,000| 108.29| 1,407,769.99|126.76| 1,647,855.80 3.05
REGD V/R /PERP/
REG S SER PNC5
ELIA GROUP SA/NV 2172
12 |/EUR/ REGD V/R 5.727 15 1,300,000 | 105.54| 1,372,069.30] 123.12| 1,600,608.35 2.96
/PERP/ REG S
IBERDROLA
FINANZAS SAU 2174
13 |/EUR/ REGD V/R 5.502 16 1,300,000| 108.73| 1,413,431.47]122.89| 1,597,520.19 2.96
/PERP/ REG S
EMTN
VODAFONE GROUP 2084
14 |PLC /EUR/ REGD 6.5 30 1,200,000 106.70| 1,280,367.23|128.18| 1,538,183.66 2.85
V/R REG S EMTN
SSE PLC /EUR/ 2174
15 |REGD V/R /PERP/ 5.95 21 1,282,000 102.26 1,310,917.38]|118.52| 1,519,488.38 2.81
REG S
VOLKSWAGEN INTL
FIN NV /EUR/ 2174
16 5.969 1,300,000 | 112.55| 1,463,205.24]116.75| 1,517,738.35 2.81
REGD V/R /PERP/ 14
REG S
AUSNET SERVICES
HOLDINGS /EUR/ 2081
17 1.625 1,200,000| 82.02 984,235.98 | 115.14| 1,381,638.59 2.56
REGD V/R REG S 11
EMTN
APA
INFRASTRUCTURE 2083
18 7.125 1,000,000 118.85| 1,188,526.72|128.39| 1,283,931.77 2.38
LTD /EUR/ REGD 11
V/R REG S EMTN
NGG FINANCE PLC 2082
19 |/EUR/ REGD V/R 2.125 1,002,000| 83.10 832,625.18 | 114.57| 1,148,002.79 2.13
REG S
2054
20 |SEMPRA REGD V/R 6.4 10 1,200,000 96.80| 1,161,640.87| 94.93| 1,139,192.04 2.11
ENBW ENERGIE 2084
21 |BADEN - WU /EUR/ 5.25 23 900,000 | 108.76 978,884.98 | 123.88| 1,114,921.87 2.06
REGD V/R REG S
TOTALENERGIES SE
/EUR/ REGD V/R 2174
22 5.517 1,100,000 92.67| 1,019,318.13]101.25| 1,113,780.56 2.06
/PERP/ REG S 25
EMTN SER NC12
NEXTERA ENERGY 2054
23 6.75 1,000,000 102.19| 1,021,853.65]103.73| 1,037,336.00 1.92
CAPITAL REGD V/R 15
BELL CANADA REGD 2055
24 VR 6.875 15 1,000,000 100.63| 1,006,334.97|102.05| 1,020,535.00 1.89
CVS HEALTH CORP 2054
25 6.75 1,000,000| 99.76 997,637.32| 100.00| 1,000,048.00 1.85
REGD V/R 12 10
ORSTED A/ /EUR/ 3024
26 5.811 800,000 | 108.14 865,088.12 | 118.85 950,818.48 1.76
REGD V/R REG S 14
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ENEL SPA /EUR/ 2174

27 |REGD V/R /PERP/ 5.667 14 800,000 | 102.87 822,995.80| 116.34 930,693.31 1.72
REG S
BRITISH
TELECOMMUNICATIO 2083

28 8.375 600,000 | 125.24 751,439.43 | 146.85 881,084.00 1.63
/GBP/ REGD V/R 12 20
REG S EMTN
VEOLIA
ENVIRONNEMENT SA 2174

29 6.074 700,000 | 106.90 748,334.99] 125.76 880,312.63 1.63
/EUR/ REGD V/R 22
/PERP/ REG S
SSE PLC /EUR/ 2173

30 |REGD V/R /PERP/ 6.669 14 677,000 99.12 671,019.20] 116.99 791,989.32 1.47
REG S
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2024 2025
2018 28 62,318,176.00 9,024,295,067 10.44 1,512
2019 28 47,211,429.00 6,836,687,033 10.02 1,451
2020 29 29,189,271.00 4,226,898,334 10.61 1,536
2021 28 25,004,453.00 3,620,894,839 10.62 1,538
2022 28 16,556,208.00 2,397,504,480 9.87 1,429
2023 28 16,402,183.00 2,375,200,120 9.09 1,316
2024 29 25,772,179.00 3,732,069,241 9.56 1,384
2025 28 33,797,487.00 4,894,214,092 9.92 1,437
2024 29,873,590.79 4,325,994,682 9.74 1,410
29,688,555.00 4,299,199,650 9.82 1,422
30,947,602.49 4,481,522,317 9.86 1,428
10 31,534,235.87 4,566,472,696 9.86 1,428
11 30,367,813.19 4,397,563,028 9.87 1,429
12 31,229,133.70 4,522,290,851 9.89 1,432
2025 31,981,332.32 4,631,216,733 9.92 1,437
33,797,487.00 4,894,214,092 9.92 1,437
34,087,752.58 4,936,247,451 9.82 1,422
33,739,979.18 4,885,886,385 9.82 1,422
35,217,403.33 5,099,832,176 9.89 1,432
35,655,862.20 5,163,325,405 9.96 1,442
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2018 28 9,393,871,563 10,313
2019 28 7,174,360,266 9,675
2020 29 5,208,004,048 10,031
2021 28 4,213,414,408 9,957
2022 28 3,088,746,795 9,253
2023 28 4,962,964,239 8,302
2024 29 4,386,108,087 8,249
2025 28 2,813,799,644 8,135
2024 3,713,639,503 8,220
3,469,633,339 8,236

3,061,836,647 8,248

10 2,933,559,177 8,212

11 2,892,644,665 8,189

12 2,840,837,524 8,161

2025 2,862,816,398 8,156
2,813,799,644 8,135

2,776,438,382 8,025

2,691,226,738 7,996

2,691,653,551 8,024

2,648,915,083 8,051
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0.27 39 225
0.36 52 300
0.36 52 300
0.36 52 300
0.36 52 300
0.36 52 300
0.36 52 300
0.36 52 300
2025 0.03 4 25
0.03 4 25
0.03 4 25
0.03 4 25
2.91 421 2,425

7.10 5.38

-0.57 -3.28

9.48 6.78

3.49 2.25

-3.67 -4.06

-4.26 -7.04

9.13 2.98

7.53 2.25

100x
10.00
10,000
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6,550,758 581,344 5,969,414
(6,550,758) (581,344) (5.,969,414)
436,038 1,691,451 4,714,001
(436,038) (1,691,451) (4,714,001)
224,384 2,186,392 2,751,993
(224,384) (2,186,392) (2,751,993)
201,749 599,424 2,354,318
(201,749) (599, 424) (2,354,318)
161,145 837,800 1,677,663
(161,145) (837,800) (1,677,663)
387,501 260,401 1,804,763
(387,501) (260,401) (1,804,763)
1,061,557 169,650 2,696,670
(1,061,557) (169, 650) (2.,696,670)
1,319,957 610,612 3,406,015
(1,319,957) (610,612) (3,406,015)
1,018,701 107,794 910,907
(1,018,701) (107,794) (910,907)
101,095 270,488 741,514
(101,095) (270, 488) (741,514)
32,615 254,925 519,204
(32,615) (254,925) (519,204)
10,045 106,107 423,142
(10,045) (106,107) (423,142)
10,828 100,156 333,814
(10,828) (100, 156) (333,814)
308,893 44,874 597,833
(308, 893) (44,874) (597,833)
58,440 124,569 531,704
(58, 440) (124,569) (531,704)
34,512 220,325 345,891
(34,512) (220, 325) (345,891)
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2025 28
NB
2025 28
46,963,138 47,742,831 6,913,639
641,803 92,939
392,358 394,048 57,062
2,182,515 316,050
951,271 137,754
857,184 124,129
52,769,652 7,641,573
137,720 19,943
43,754 6,336
42,597 6,168
23,601 3,418
20,093 2,910
11,372 1,647
8,577 1,242
12,301 1,781
300,015 43,445
52,469,637 7,598,128
67,137,181 9,722,135
(14,667,544) (2,124,007)
52,469,637 7,598,128
2,813,799,644
345,891 8,135
33,797,487
3,406,015 9.92 1,437
14481
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NB
2025 28
700 2,288,313 331,371
312 45
2,288,625 331,416
341,004 49,381
341,004 49,381
161,289 23,356
123,897 17,942
26,231 3,799
14,998 2,172
9,997 1,448
10,092 1,461
1,028,512 148,939
1,260,113 182,477
420,603 60,908
(1,097,311) (158,902)
(676,708) (97,994)
526,535 76,248
1,506,752 218,193
2,033,287 294,440
1,356,579 196,446
2,616,692 378,923
144.81
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NB
2025 28
1,260,113 182,477
(676,708) (97,994)
2,033,287 294,440
2,616,602 378,923
(826,397) (119,671)
(1,091,546) (158,067)
(1,917,943) (277,737)
34,512 1,809,179 261,987
1,319,957 12,895,753 1,867,434
220,325 (12,025,233) (1,741,374)
610,612 (5,986,182) (866,859)
(3,306,483) (478,812)
(2.607,734) (377,626)
55,077,371 7,975,754
52,469,637 7,598,128
144.81
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60/196

NB
2025 28
2,616,692 378,923
(13,787,899) (1,996,626)
21,494,860 3,112,671
(50,399) (7,298)
(420,603) (60,908)
(526,535) (76,248)
(1,529,907) (221,546)
66,221 9,589
64,331 9,316
(630) (91)
12,207 1,768
(8,179) (1,184)
(3,785) (548)
23,553 3,411
(12,754) (1,847)
(4,752) (688)
7,932,421 1,148,694
12,622,327 1,827,839
(18,258,156) (2,643,964)
(1,917,943) (277,737)
(7,553,772) (1,093,862)
378,649 54,832
657,202 95,169
1,035,851 150,002
144.81
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NB
2025 28
2025 28 2025 28
8,249 9.56 1,384
() 197 0.23 33
(11) 0.49 71
186 0.72 104
(300) (0.36) (52)
8,135 9.92 1,437
2.29 7.66
2,813,800 33,797 4,894,144
1.92 1.99
2.40 2.40
(€D
144.81
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NB
2025 28
Q)
91.0
4.5
4.5
APA Infrastructure Ltd.
1,000,000 7.13% due 11/09/83 2.2 1,144,122
AusNet Services Holdings Pty Ltd.
1,200,000 1.63% due 03/11/81 2.3 1,212,290
2,356,412
2,356,412
2.9
2.9
Elia Group S.A. NV
1,300,000 5.85% due 03/15/28(1 2.7 1,419,789
Syensqgo S.A.
100,000 2.50% due 12/02/25(1) 0.2 102,825
1,522,614
1,522,614
5.0
5.0
Enbridge, Inc.

1,809,000 5.50% due 07/15/77 3.3 1,764,964
360,000 6.00% due 01/15/77 0.7 358,090
333,000 7.63% due 01/15/83 0.7 348,900

Rogers Communications, Inc.
149,000 5.25% due 03/15/82 0.3 145,593
2,617,547
2,617,547
1.6
1.6
Orsted AS
800,000 5.13% due 03/14/24 1.6 854,660
854,660
854,660
22.3
22.3
Electricite de France S.A.
2,100,000 6.00% due 01/29/26(1) 5.0 2,644,215
Engie S.A.
2,000,000 5.13% due 03/14/33(1) 4.2 2,175,539
Orange S.A.
2,800,000 5.38% due 01/18/30(1) 5.9 3,112,430
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Q)
TotalEnergies SE
2,269,000 1.63% due 10/25/27(1) 4.3 2,247,671
700,000 4.12% due 11/19/29(D) 1.4 738,010
Veolia Environnement S.A.
700,000 5.99% due 11/22/28(1) 1.5 783,726
11,701,591
11,701,591
2.3
2.3
Bertelsmann SE & Co. KGaA
100,000 3.50% due 04/23/75 0.2 103,739
EnBW Energie Baden-Wuerttemberg AG
900,000 5.25% due 01/23/84 1.9 991,364
Merck KGaA
100,000 1.63% due 09/09/80 0.2 101,624
1,196,727
1,196,727
2.0
2.0
Enel SpA
800,000 4.50% due 10/14/32(1) 1.6 831,933
ENI SpA
100,000 2.00% due 02/11/27(1) 0.2 101,140
Terna - Rete Elettrica Nazionale
100,000 2.38% due 11/09/27(1) 0.2 100,633
1,033,706
1,033,706
6.7
6.7
Alliander NV
100,000 4.50% due 03/27/32(D) 0.2 107,993
Koninklijke KPN NV
200,000 4.88% due 06/18/29(1) 0.4 216,008
Stedin Holding NV
300,000 1.50% due 12/31/26(1) 0.6 300,969
TenneT Holding BV
100,000 2.37% due 07/22/25(1) 0.2 103,395
Volkswagen International Finance NV
1,300,000 3.88% due 06/14/27(L 2.5 1,338,480
1,300,000 7.50% due 09/06/28(1) 2.8 1,470,543
3,537,388
3,537,388
0.2
0.2
EDP S.A.
100,000 1.88% due 03/14/82 0.2 95,680
95,680
95,680
Q)
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3.5
3.5
Iberdrola Finanzas S.A.
300,000 4.25% due 05/28/30(1) 0.6 317,707
1,300,000 4.87% due 01/16/31(1) 2.7 1,416,759
Redeia Corp. S.A.
100,000 4.63% due 05/07/28(1) 0.2 107,348
1,841,814
1,841,814
1.1
1.1
Vattenfall AB
500,000 2.50% due 06/29/83 1.1 565,846
565,846
565,846
28.4
28.4
BP Capital Markets PLC
393,000 3.25% due 03/22/26(1) 0.8 407,739
2,276,000 3.63% due 03/22/29(1) 4.5 2,341,476
British Telecommunications PLC
2,018,000 4.25% due 11/23/81 3.7 1,964,890
600,000 8.38% due 12/20/83 1.6 814,041
Centrica PLC
500,000 6.50% due 05/21/55 1.2 642,774
NGG Finance PLC
1,002,000 2.13% due 09/05/82 1.9 1,011,078
1,378,000 5.63% due 06/18/73 3.3 1,733,257
SSE PLC
677,000 3.13% due 04/14/27(1) 1.3 697,972
303,000 3.74% due 01/14/26(1) 0.7 376,753
1,282,000 4.00% due 01/21/28(1 2.6 1,347,800
Vodafone Group PLC
2,460,000 4.13% due 06/04/81 4.2 2,211,481
1,200,000 6.50% due 08/30/84 2.6 1,374,316
14,923,577
14,923,577
10.5
10.5
CVS Health Corp.
1,000,000 6.75% due 12/10/54 1.9 999,587
NextEra Energy Capital Holdings, Inc.
1,000,000 6.75% due 06/15/54 2.0 1,025,891
Sempra
1,200,000 6.40% due 10/01/54 2.2 1,154,504
Southern Co.
2,329,000 1.88% due 09/15/81 4.4 2,315,287
5,495,269
5,495,269
Q)
46,963,138 47,742,831
46,963,138 91.0 47,742,831

64/196



@

144 81

65/196

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

9.0 4,726,806

100.0 52,469,637
(7,598,128,134 )
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Royal Bank of
Canada

State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
Royal Bank of
Canada
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Citibank NA
Goldman Sachs
Royal Bank of
Canada

Royal Bank of
Canada

State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
Westpac
Banking
Corporation

155,103

1,343,600

402,822

2,653,172

201,209
136,853

724,657

145,941

31,677,743

10,992,023

720,470

2025

2025

2025

2025

2025
2025

2025

2025

2025

2025

2025

16

16

16

16

16
16

16

16

16

16

16
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(160,272)

(1,400,798)

(500,000)

(3,300,000)

(193, 300)
(131,088)

(700,000)

(140,118)

(30, 384,269)

(8,796,618)

(700,000)

1,406 1,406
(238) (238)

7,158 7,158
40,379 40,379
(286) (286)

208 208
(5.018)  (5,018)

117 i

5,391 5,391
(83,034)  (83,034)

(9,205)  (9,205)

54,542 (97,898)  (43,356)
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Goldman Sachs
Goldman Sachs

State Street
Bank And
Trust Co.
UBS AG
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Citibank NA
Royal Bank of
Canada
State Street
Bank And Trust
Co.

State Street
Bank And Trust
Co.

Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation
Westpac
Banking
Corporation

13,320,945
11,554,779

9,588,341
2,840,059,162

822,387

40,000,000

168,493,151

74,974
123,083

70,215

56,692

494,793

462,327

56,096

63,653

31,532

159,580

26,767

59,019

95,837

2025
2025

2025

2025

2025

2025

2025

2025
2025

2025

2025

2025

2025

2025

2025

2025

2025

2025

2025

2025

16
16

16

16

16

16

16

16
16

16

16

16

16

16

16

16

16

16

16

16

(86,805)
(74,686)

(63,742)
(18,178,612)

(5,327)

(258,152)

(1,101,303)

(11,300,149)
(19,276,115)

(10,975,534)

(8,787,381)

(76,046,611)

(71,166,901)

(8,628,907)

(9,730,805)

(4,843,557)

(24,011,296)

(4,029,420)

(8,762,627)

(14,253,853)
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2,049
2,387

215
765,259

158

8,658

22,586

(401)
(5.,493)

(2,995)

(1,922)

(12,456)

(12,374)

(1,461)

(1,254)

(775)

(581)

(110)

570

760

2,049
2,387

215
765,259

158

8,658

22,586

(401)
(5.493)

(2,995)

(1,922)

(12,456)

(12,374)

(1,461)

(1,254)

(775)

(581)

(110)

570

760

802,642  (39,822)

762,820




NB

LLC

NB

2012 10 15

UFJ

2025

2021

28

2016 12 16

2017 22

CIBC
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CIMA



GAAP

946

GAAP

FASB

12

69/196

EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

ASC

GAAP



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2025 28
2025 28
47,742,831 47,742,831
857,184 857,184
48,600,015 48,600,015
2025 28
(137,720) (137,720)
(137,720) (137,720)
2025 28
FASB ASC 740

50
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54 7,653,250
6,027,348
)
)
)

FX

2024 29

2025 28

2024 29

2025 28

2025 28
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71 2,437,746
35
78 3,498,922
)
) )
29,305,192 25,772,179 55,077,371
1,809,179 12,895,753 14,704,932
(12,025,233)  (5,986,182)  (18,011,415)
(826,397)  (1,091,546)  (1,917,943)
409,409 2,207,283 2,616,692
18,672,150 33,797,487 52,469,637
531,704 2,696,670 3,228,374
34,512 1,319,957 1,354,469
(220,325) (610,612) (830,937)
345,891 3,406,015 3,751,906
53.98 9.92
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10.00

10,000
10

2025 28
2025 28

2017 22

10
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ASC  815-10-50

a b
c
ASC 815
ISDA 1SDA
1SDA
2025 28 MNA
MNA
)

Goldman Sachs 4,644 4,644
Royal Bank of Canada 8,564 (8,564)
State Street Bank And Trust Co. 5,606 (5,606)
UBS AG 765,259 765,259
Westpac Banking Corporation 73,111 (38,216) 34,895

857,184 (52,386) 804,798

2025 28 MNA
MNA
@

Citibank NA 687 687
Royal Bank of Canada 10,628 (8,564) 2,064
State Street Bank And Trust Co. 88,189 (5,606) 82,583
Westpac Banking Corporation 38,216 (38,216)

137,720 (52,386) 85,334

@

2025 28
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857,184 (137,720)

2025 28

(1,061,176) 1,529,907
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0.65
0.30 0.35
2025 28 341,004
2025 28 20,093
0.08 2.5
0.07 2.5
0.06
80,000
2025 28

161,289 2025 28 23,601

0.015

15,000 2025 28
14,998 2025 28 8,577
0.05
2025 28 26,231 2025

28 11,372

0.65

2025 28 341,004 2025
28 42,597
10
FATCA/CRS 1,500
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12
13
2025
2025 2025
958,953
2025 2025
1,087,938
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17,269
233,599
2,419,704
421,728
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND

STATEMENT OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

February 28, 2025

[Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)

Arsets

BrreRsmands in seounities, a1 value (cost of USE 86,963,138) uso AT 742831
Lash 41,803
Foreign curnency, at vilos (cost of LISD 391,358) L 04R
Recorrable for Units issued 2182515
Enterest receivable 25111
Unrealized appreciation on fonward foreign currency fachangd Comracts BET.1E4
Tatal adets SE.T60652
Liabilithes:

Unrealized depreciation on forward foreign ounrency exchange contracts 137,720
Acgrued prodessional fees ALTH
Accrued ditributors fees #2597
Acerued custod lan and sub-sdminbitrator's fee 2L E0]
Acerued sanpgerent fees FuRe L
Accrued agent compansy's fecs 11,372
Acgrued rustes fees BITT
Arcnoepd other Expanies 12,301
Tatal Babilaing #0015
Mot Asets Attribatable to Unitholder uso 52 469,637
Hinabrii of Net fdieti:

Pied inv capital uED 6137181
Cumadative net eamings and distributions (18057 Sad|
Bt Assets Aliributable to Unitholder (1] EEE
et Asgart Vadow per Limip

Y Class Y 2,813, 799,644 + 345 591 Units outstanding) JFY 8135
JUSD Class USD 33, 75T 457 + 3,406,015 Uvets cutsianding) S0 552

The accampanying notes aré an integral part of these finandial statements.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the ¥ear Ended February 28, 2025
[Expressed in United States Dollar)
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Investmant Incoemae:
Brterest (net of withholding tases of S0 200§
Miscrlaneais oo

Total Irvnstmant nsome

Exparre:
Detndutor's fees
Managemant fpey
Custodizn and sub-administrator's fees
Prodessional feey
Agent company's lies
Trustee fees
Transfer agent lees
NP Bt
Toaal Expirsis

Het nvestment ncome

Realized g/ lassns] and change in unrealiced appreciation|depreciation]:
Feaized gairs/{losses)
Irestmients in securities
Foreigh culiency (ransactiong and Torward fantgi urrency dxchangs (oriracts
Mt realined kit
Change in yrragkned appreciaticndeprediation]
Irrrebemients i Secanities
Foreign oumency translabora and foreard forelgn cumency exchsnge contracts
Net change in unrealired appreciation
Net realized and change in unrealized lpsses and appreciation

BNt incrsas in st aiets rsultang ham opsrations

usn 2288313
iz
LIEREIE

341,004
T4L00
161,289
123,807
Dh,2E]
14,998
2507
0087
1038512

1160113

ANLE0E

(10973111
(675, 708]

526,535
1,506 752
2038 X8y

1,356,579

UsD 1E16E0

The accampanying notes aré an integral part of these finandial statements.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

For the ¥ear Ended February 28, 2025
[Expressed in United States Dollar)

Increase [Decrease] in Net Assets from:

Dparations:
Mot investment income uso 1,260,113
Bt realized bosses (676, FOE]
et charge in unrealited appreciation 2033287
BT inCrease in ned anuels resulling Trom cperalion TA16ERT
Distribastiosrs to Uinitholder:
IPY Clas (B, 25T
USDClas

Total Diitritnticrs

(3,091, 545)
1917 4

Capital Trangactios:
Units issued
IPY Clid (34,512 WnRs) LE1TY
WSO Class (1,319,957 Unitsh 12895753
Unifts. rindisemisd
JBY Class (220,325 Units) [1202s 23]
LRAEH Cla (610612 Winis) [5.586, 187)
et docragse in red driels resulting from capital irrractcng [!.m;l
Taotal Decraasy in Nat Albets 07T
Mot Assatss
Bogpireorg of year E&H.!I']
End of year S0 2 459 63T

The accampanying notes aré an integral part of these finandal statements.
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MNEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the ¥ear Ended February 28, 2025
[Expressed in United States Dollar)

Cash Tiows from operating activities:
et increie in net sty resulting Trom operation sl 216692

Adjustmants to recondile the net increase in net aiets resulting from operations to ret cash provided by

cperating activities
Purchase of breeitmands (15, TET &5
Proceeds from sabe and rmaturity of imssinesents 21, 454 850
et amortirstion and {aconetion ) of premiums snd discounts on corporate debt obligations and short ferm

invERITEALL [50.35%)
Reafized gaire on investmients in seoanities [0 803)
Change in unreabined Appeaciation on ismestments [536,535]
Change in uneealaed appreciation on foreard foreign currency eschange contracts (1,539 207]

Change in assets and labdities relsted to operations:

Decraass in Ml recthvabis B5. 221
Decrease n other assels [R5
Decrsass i accrued agant company's fees 1&30]
Engreie in adcntd oustodan and sub-sdministratons el 15007
Decrease i accrued distributor’s fpes (2174
Decneaie in aocrued managemint skl [3.7&5]
Increase in accrued professional fees F3Ee3y
Dupereain in aorrued tnatee loey [12.T54)
Devrease in accrued other gxpenses (4,752
Het canh provided by operating acihities T 14}
Cash fiows wwed in financing activities:

Procesds from Undits iaued 12622337
Paryreiseeli 0 LInits eadaamad [18.X58.155)
Distnibartiord paid ba Unitholder L9174y
Het cavh used In finencing activities TESLTT
Mt increase in cash and foreign oarrency ITE.649
Cavh arad Loreign cutrency 51 baginning of year 657202
Cash and Faneign curmgndy at end of yoar S0 1035851

The accompanying nates are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND

FINAMCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
For the ¥ear Ended February 28, 2025
Selected Per Unit Data and Ratios

[Expressed in United States Dollar, unless otherwise indicated)
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et Azt Valug, begenning of year

et irmaRitmend incomet

Het realized and unresfived gaing|losies)

e increate in net #mets resulting from operations

Lews distributtions

et Asspt Valug, end of year

Total rekurn

Ratios,Supplemental data;
Mes anseds end of year (000°)
i of exparded 1o Pnirage nal Fiety
Reatio @l nat invi-Stimint INCOme 10 Jverage nt agsiats

= Calgulated wing innerige Units eunstanding for thee yiss,

The accompanying nates are an integral part of these financial statemerts.
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IPY Chass USD Class:

For the Year Ended  For the Yaas Ended

Febnmary 28, 2005 Ftnaany 28, 025
WY B8 UsD 4.56
97 023
{1y 0.4%
185 072
{3004 0.36)
L 8135 S 9.5
— —
1199 TEEM
Y LB13800 uso 3797
1.92% 1.99%
2405 2 A0



NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND

PORTFOLIC OF INVESTMENTS
February 28, 2025
[Expressed in United States Dollar)
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EuR

Eui

EL®

ELR

EEE

5

ELR

EUR

ELR

EUR
EUR

EUS

ELeg

ELsR

EL®

EUR

Frincipal
Amaunt

1,000,000

1,200,008

100,000

1,800,000
333,000
1,000

% of Met
et Aziets Fair Value
FINED INCONE SECUMITIES [31.07%)
AUSTRALES (4.5%)
CORPORATE BOMDS & MOTES [4.5%]

AFS ifraativetuie L

T3 due 110WER B List EET TR

AN e Serdoe Hioldings oy Lbd

LE3% due B3/11781 13 1,213,290
TOTAL CORFORATE BOMDS & NOTES 1356A1T
TOTAL AUSTRALLA 2356412

BELGILIMA {2984}

CORPORATE BOMDS & MOTIS (19%)

2 Group 5.4 NV

56%% due 00150 LY 1415, 789

Syrrage S

2.500 due 120027250 L) 101825
TOTAL CORPORATE BOMDS & NOTES 1,521614
JEYDAL BRI L

CAMADA |50
CORPORATE BOMDS & MOTES [5.0%]

Erbsridgs, Inc.

550 dus 071577 33 1,764,964

B due D157 a? EL=T ]

FEIN due D15RE or 348 500

ROfErs Comimuntatanms, n.

5.75% due 03/15/82 L& 185593
TOTAL CORPORATE BOMDS & NOTES 517,547
TOTAL CAMADA 3617547

DEMMARE [1.6%)

CORPORATE BOMDS & MOTES [1.65]

Orated &%

5.13% due 03714724 L& il G50
TOTAL CORPORATE BOMDS & HOTES 854 650
TOTAL DERMASK BiA 0

PRANCE [22.5%)

CORPORATE BONDS & MOTES [F1.3%)
Ebecoricite de France .4
0O due D252 50 2644315
SA

5.13% due 037147335 43 3175539

Orange 5.4

5.33% due 011873005 59 1,412,430

TetaE i gt SE

LEIN due /ISR 43 1247511

4,139 due 1171575 14 FER0

Vienka Emdnesrsenmint S0

550 due 113275810 15 83726
TOTAL CORPORATE DOMDS & NOTES 13,703,591
TOTAL FRAMCE 11,701,591

GERMANY [2.7%)

CORPORATE B0MDS & MOTES [X.3%)]

emelsmasn 8 & (o iGan

8,500 due 0/23175 [1F} Wi

EnfW Ererghe Haden-Wuesrttembeng AG

5.219% due 012384 15 G910

Mizrck KGah

1463% due 0905780 a2 G2
TOTAL CORPORATE BOMDS & MOTES 1,186,727
TOTAL GERMANY 1186727

ITALY {24}
CORPORATE BONDS & NOTES (2.0%]
Enel SpA

4500 due 1147384

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
PORTFOLIC OF INVESTMENTS |continued)
February 28, 2025

[Expressed in United States Dollar)

Principal % af et

Currency A Security Dserig At Fair Valug
(FINED INCOME SECURRTTIES [FL.0PG) | conrinmssd)
ITALY {2.07%) [eortimmatd)
CORPORATE BONDS & NOTES (2.0%] feontinuid)

ERA Sp
EUR 100,000 25000 due 02/ 11720 0% usn 101,180
Terna - Rete Eletirics Nationale
ELR 100,000 2.33% dus §1LAOGETE a2 L 33
TOTAL CORFORATE DONDS & ROTIS LOBE 0
TOTAL ITALY 1 T06
NETHERLANDS [5.7%)
CORPORATE B08DS & MOTES [E.75)
Allander MY
(1F ] XL 4,500 due GRATFIE f2 WrAE
KowinkRjke LPN WY
LU 200,000 A% due DG/ 18715 QA 116,008
Sechn Holding By
Eusk 300,000 1500 due L RLS o 00,945
TennaT Holding IV
0] 100,000 L57% due 00132 S0 L F] 103,395
volkawagen Intemational France NV
EUR 1300600 H R due 61453 L5 1258480
EL 1300000 500 due 096 E 18 1A 58
TOTAL CORPORATE BOMDS B ROTES 3,557 388
TOTAL BITHERCAADY e BENT RS
PORTLHGAL {0.3%)
CORPORATE BONDS & NOTES (DU2%]
ECP 5.4
EUR 100,000 LE2% due 03/14/8 1] 5680
TOTAL CORFORATE BONDS & ROTER i fi0
TOTAL PORTUGAL U5, 630
SPAIN (3.5%]
CORPORATE B0M0S & MOTES [3.5%)
Ibeediroda Finanzes 5.4
Eue 00,000 4.75% due 05/ 1550 s o
V] 1,300,600 A57% due 0L 1651 By 1ALFS9
Resdeia Conp. A
(47 ] 100000 A 60% due OGN TES a2 AT
TOTAL CORPORATE BOMDS B WOTES §,841.314
TOTAL SPUN
SWEDEN {1.1%)
CORPORATE BON0S & NOTIS (3.1%]
Vattendall AB
GoEr S00.000 2.50% due 06/ T5/E3 11 565845
TOTAL CORFORATE BONDS & ROTER St it
TOTAL SWEDEN 565346
LINITED EING DM | 25.A%]
DDRPORATE BONDS & NOTES [13.4%)
BP Capital Muarets FLE
ELsR F0F.000 3.5 duk D332 e [k S0T 730
ELR 276,000 363% due DR/3TH 45 1341476
firisiah Telegommenication PLC
S0 1.005,000 4.¥5% due 11/31781 kY 1564800
Goe (00,000 B dun R2I0MRL 15 #1401
Contrics ML
Gop S0, 000 6500 due BR/TLAS 12 G
Wi Finane PLC
(a7 ] 100,000 2.19% due (9N05RY 19 1011008
Gor 1ATE 000 S 1% due 061878 L& 1,738257
5L PLE
Eu® B3 T, 000 5,105 due Osif 14310 i GHTATY
GRP 303,000 BT due 00714060 or ARG, 5E
R 1202000 4500 due 00721 S i 1387 A00
Wodalpne Group B0
LIS L ARLO00 4.19% due DB/0181 42 LA

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
PORTFOLIC OF INVESTMENTS |continued)
February 28, 2025

[Expressed in United States Dollar)

Frincipal % of Me1
Currshcy A Sezurity Diseripti Adhits Failf Valusg
FENED INCOME SECURITEES [91L.07%} | contimsed)
UNITID KINGROM [28.4%] {conticusd]
CORPORATE BOMNDS & NOTES (238.4%] (oontinued)
EUR 1,200,000 B.500 due D8,/ 30/B4 1EMW uso 1314316
TOTAL CORFORATE BONDS & NOTES 14028577
TOTAL UNITED KINGDOM 14,933,577
UNITED STATES {10.5%]
CORPORATE BOMDS & NOTES [10.5%)
S Moahh Comp,
(115 1, 0051000 6. 755 due 12110/ 19 HRSAT
MNextina [nergy Cagital Holding, ing
uso 1,000,000 6. T4% due 0615754 X ] 1005891
Sampra
usa 1,200,000 A due HMDL 1 L5504
Southern Ca,
pus 1000 1A% du 001581 44 1018387
TOTAL CORPORATE BONDS B HOTES 5,495 269
TOTAL UNITID STATES HATHIGR
TOTAL FIKED IRCOME SECURITIES {Cont LSO 468,963, 1X8) A7, T42A31
TOTAL INVESTMENTS [Coat USD 35,963,138} a10M 1] 47,743,831
CAKH AND OTHER ASSETS IN EXCESS OF LIABUITIES pi) 4, TP6A06
WIT ASSETS L uiD T
L Pt sl s . Wl ey i prwnaridd] Appeprum el o Sig v (45 dple
Fund Livel Forward Fongign Cusrancy Exchange Contriscts
et Unrealized
Notiomal  Settleman Katianal Winneafined Unreslited  Appreciation
Buy  Counterparty Amaiant Dot Sell A intign _|Depreciation] (Dep 1
HUR  Royal Bark of Canada 155,108 D4SI600% SO [EG0.27 ) W50 1,406 VS0 = 5D 1,406
EUR  Seaze Suieet Bank And Treit Co, LBLG00 D4JIGM0RS LSO (1400.708) - 1238) [238]
GEP  Royal Bark of Canada S0LEFT AUG/I025  USD |500.000) 1158 - T.158
GAF  Wedtpar Rinking Conporation LASLATY D4NIRA0ES D (RI00.000) A0,379 - 40,379
USD  Ciibank NA B0L,209 O4/16/2005  EUR (193,300 - 288y [288]
ush  Geoddman Sachs 1MA53 GRS EUR [131.008] 08 = b
uS Ryl Aank of Cansda TRAGST (ASIGANRS  EUR [P0} - 5.008) [5.008]
USD  Royal Bark of Canada 145,541 (MAUG/I025  EUR (140, 11E] - [im [11mn
Wl Skate Strewt Bank And Trost Co, BLGTTOAR QAIR0ES  EUR (BOBIGG) 5,391 - 539
USD  Szate Sreet Bank And Tt Co 10,902,073 4162025 GRP CEID6 ELE) - {B3,034) [E3.034]
USD  Westpar Banking Conporation THLATO O4/1G/2005  EUR (700,004 - 19,205 [5L 305
LSO 5AS40 S0 (9789RIUSD  [43.356)
1PY Hiediged Cladi Forwand Foreign Currency Exchange Contracti
Wit Unreaiized
Notiomal  Settlemenm Haotkanal Uinnealined Unrealized  Appreciation)
Duy _ Counturparty Ameisnt Date_ Sell Amzunt o
IPY  (eoldman Sachs A0S OE6/000S LD (BAGS] WSO 23 USD = U0 P
MY Geldman Sachs 1LEM,TTE 416/P05 LSO [74.686] 1,387 - 1387
IPY SRate Strest Bank And Trat Co G565, 341 O4/NG/I005 LSO |B3.743) FiL] - g
IPY U AG A B0 IR 0416 NS LSD (IEITRALY] 765,259 - TER N
I Weitzac Banking Conper ation RILIET  D4/16/M005 LISD {5327 158 - 158
IPY Westpac Banking Conporation ACOOO000 041672005 LISD (258,152 R.658 - BASE
1P Wiestpa Benking Conporation WRAYRIS] 0416005 LSO {Lana0d) 22,585 - TL5BE
WS Difbank WA 0T DANE/IOOS AW {11.300.445) - [a01) [41]
US0  Royal Bark of Canada 1r.083  04/167 000 Y {19.230.015) = {5.493) 54531
LISE  Seate Sirewt Aask And Tret Co o1 DEIGRS RN 410,975,534) - 12.995) [2,55%)
WS Szate Street Bank And Trest Co 55,687 [/AG/I0Q5 Y (B.787.381) - {1,522) 1,521
USD  Wedtpar Banking Conporation 798 DEEORS WY (PEOABGLI] - 112,456) [17.458)
LS Westpae Banking Conper ation SE1AFT  DM/IES0DS 8 (TLABEOE] - {12,374) [12374)
WS Westpar Banking Conpoeation 55,096 O4/16/2025 FY (B52E 507) - 11,468) [1.461)
USD  Wedtpac lunking Conporation BRASF  I6DNS (9.720.805) - 1,254) [3,354)
USD  Westpac Banking Conpoeation 31,552 O4/N6/B005 BV 4,843,557) - 1775) [rrs)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MNEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
PORTFOLIC OF INVESTMENTS (continued)
February 28, 2025

[Expressed in United States Dollar)

1FY Hedged Class Forward Forelgn Currency Exchange Contracts (comtinued)

Net Unnealized
Notlonal  Settlement Hotional Unrealined Unrealiced  Appreciation/
imatant Date Sell fi cigtion |Depriciation] | 1
USE  Westpac Banking Conpoeation 155,580 (/185005 BY (rem11ane) LSO = s (SERILISE |5&1])
LISE Westpac Munking Conpeet ation TEIGT (4167005 Y [LLEF ] = (2R (330}
USD  Westpac Banking Conporation 59019 04162005 BV (B, 761 E27) 570 - 70
WED  Westpac lunking Conporation FRART 0816500 Y {14 250855) Tl = TE0
A0 ROQLEAD USD  (ISBINUED  TERAM
Currency beginsd
EUR Eurg
Gee [Bitish Poynd
Iey Lapaneus Yen
D United States Dollsr

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the ¥Year Ended February 28, 2025

DRGANIZATION

NEUS Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund {the “Series Trust™} is a series trust of the Nikko AM Offshore Funds, an open-ended
unit trust established by a supplemental trust deed dated December 16, 2016 (the “Supplemental Trust Deed®), under the
Laws of the Cayman lslands. Mikko AM Offghore Funds was established by a master trust deed dated October 15, 2012 {the
“Master Trust Deed”], tnder the Laws of the Cayman kslands and is licersed with the Cayman laands Manetary Autharity
pursuant 1o section 4{1}{a] of the Mutwal Funds Act (2021 Revision). The Serkes Trust commenced operations on February
21 1007,

The Series Trust's assets are managed on a day-to-day basis by Nilkko Al Global Cayman Limited (the “Manager™). The
Manager delegates investment management duties to Nikke Saiet Management Co., Ltd., [the “Imeestment Manager”). This
Ivvestrnent Manager delegates investment managament dites to Newberger Berman Investrent Advisers LLC, {the “Sub-
Ivvestrnent Manager™) The sdménistration of the Seres Trust is defegated to Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. {the
“Custodian” and “Sub-Administrater”], a limited partnership organized under the laws of the State of New York.

The investment objective of the Series Trust |5 to achieve a mid to fong term total return throwgh income and capital
appreciation. The Series Trust shall mainly vest in bath investrent grade and nan-investment grade hybrid securities that
are isdued by non-finantial corporate issuers and have been rated by either of Moody's, SEP or Fitch. The highest rating from
all theee of these agencies shall be applied to each cosporate hybrid security and the average rating of the portfolio shall be
BBE-/Baad or abowe,

Corporate hybeid debt securities are structured Instrumants that combine bath equity and fived income characteristics that
generalty offer 3 means for Bsuers 1o bomow money fram nvestors in return Bor interest payments. Such corparate issuers
may wtilize bybeid debt for o variety of reasons, including bolstering their capital levels, lowering their weighted avernge cost
of capitad, diversitying thesr funding sources and managing credit ratings. Thowgh terms and conditions have become
increasingly standardized, the specific characteristics of each instrument {such as payment conditions, the ratio of debt and
equity-like featwes, time frames and applicable rates) can vary,

The Sevied Trust may alss bnvest in ficed and Boating rate debt seciities, inchuding bonds, issued by govermmints and
Bovernment related entities.

Devivative Instruments will be used for efficient portfolio management andfor imestrment purpases, as well as for hedgng.

Under the terms of the Supplemental Trust Deed and the Master Trust Deed, CIBC Caribbean Bank and Trust Company
[Cayman] Limited [formerty FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company {Cayman] Limited) (the "Trustee” and the
“hdministrator”) is named a8 Trostes of the Series Trust.

The Manager appointed Mitsubishi UF) Morgan Stanley Secusities Co., Ltd to act as Agent Comparry [the “Agent Company”}
and the Manager appointed Mitsubishl UF} Morgan Standey Securities Co,, Lid to act as Distributor {the “Dstribator”) of
Units in Japan or such other person or institution as may be appeénted as distributor of the Series Trust by the Manager from
i o time,

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Thee Sertes Trust 5 an Investment company that folaws the accownting and reporting guidance in FASE Accounting Standards
Codification B46.

Lise af Estimates

The accempanying financial statements have been prepared in accardance with accounting principles generally scoepted in
the United States of America (U5 GAAP®), The preparation of financial statermnents In accordance with L5 GAAF reguires
the Series Trust's management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amaunts of assets and Rabilities
and disclosures of contingent assets and llabllities at the date of the finandial statements and the reported amaunts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting peried. Actual results, intuding the ultimate amount realized upon the sale of
fasr valued investrnents, could differ fram those estimates and such differences may be sgnificant.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMEMNTS {continued)
For the ¥ear Ended February 28, 2025

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLUICIES {continued]

Bursls of Accounting

Secusity and contractual transactions ae recorded on 3 trade/contract-date basis. Interest income & recorded on an
effective yiedd basls, net of any applicablie withholding tax, interest expense and other expenses are recorded on an accrual
basis. Realized gains and kosses from security transactions are compsited on the basis of the average cost of the securities
sold or cowered. Changes in the valuation of irvestments are recarded in the Statement of Operatians as unrealized
Appreciation of depreciation.

Vrlvation of investments

Bonds and other debt securities, including restricted securities [other than shoet-term obligations but induding lsted issues)
are fair valwed a1 their last séle price in the principal market in which such securitied are narmally traded, on the basis of
waluations furnsshed by 3 pricing sendice, use of which has been approved by the Investment Manager, or if no sale has
accisred, the bid price on the valuation date as provided by brokers who are market makers in the securities. All debt
seguritles with less than 12 months to maturity date, in principle shall be falr valued using an amortized cost effected by an
wffoction yield accumulated/amortization mathod to their matwrity date with adjustments based on comparisan with market
prices as reguined.

In accordance with the authoritative guidance on fair value measurements and disclosures ender LL5. GAAP, the Series Trust
dischoses the fair value of its investments in 3 hierarchy that pricsitizes the nputs o valuation techniquees used (o measure
thiz fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority te valuations based upon unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or labilities {Level T measurement] and the lowest priarity to valuations based upon unobservable inputs
that are significant 1o the valuation (Level 3 meadurements). The guidanoe establisbes three levels of the fair value hierarchy
as follows:

*  Level 1 = Inputs that reflect unadpusted quated prices in active markets for identical investments that the Series
Trust has the ability to access at the measurement date;

*  Level 2 —Inputs ather than quoted prices that are significant and observable for the asset or liability sither directhy
of indirsctly, including imputs in markets that are not considesed 10 be st

*  Level 3= Inputs that are significant and unobservabile.

Inguts are used in applying the various valuation technigues and broadly refer to the assumptions that market participants
use b make valuation decissans, including assumptions about risk. Inputs may indude price information, specifec and broad
crodit data, liquadity statisties, and ather factors. A financial instr ument’s bevel within the fair value hierarchy is based upan
the fowest level of any mput that is significant 1o the fasr valee measurement. However, the determination of what
constitutes “observable™ requires significant judgment by the Investment Manager, The Investment Manager considers
observable data to be market data which is readily avadlabla, regulardy distributed or updated, refiable and verifiable, not
proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively inveboed in the relevant market. The categorization of a
financial instrument within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the instrument and does not necessarily
correspond 1o the Investment Manager's percerved risk of that instrement.

Invwestments whose valses are based on the quoted market prices In active markets, and therefone classified within Level 1,
would include actively traded equities, certain U5 government and sovercign obligations, and certain money markit
securities. The investment Manager would not adjust the quated price for such instruments, even in situstions where the
Series Trust hedd & large position and 3 salie could reasonably impact the quated pice.

Iveestments that trade in markets that are not consldered to be active, but are valued based on quoted market prices, dealer
quotations or alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classified within Level 2. These include
investment-grade debt securities, short-lerm irvestments and forward fareign currency exchange contracts. As Level 2
investments include positions that are nat traded in sctive markets andfor are sublject to transfer restrictions, valuations
iy be adjusted ta reflect iliquidety andfor non-transferabilty, which ade generally based an maifable market infarmation.

Inwestrments classified within Level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they would trade infrequently, Level 3
instruments wauld include asset-backed securities and collateralized mortgage obligations. As observable prices are not
available for those securities, the Series Trust would use valwation technigues to dernee the fair value.

Thet imputs or methodolegy used for valuing securities are not necessarily an indication of the risk asscolated with investing
in those securithes.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMEMNTS {continued)
For the ¥ear Ended February 28, 2025

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES | continued)

Vrlvatian of Investments fcontinwed)

Thee folipwing table presents the financial instruments carried on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities by caption and by
Beved within the valuation hieranchy as of February 28, 2025, Further classifications of the financial instruments are presented
iin i Portiolio of vestments.

Aspets an Fair Vabos Fair Viadun 31
Lewel 1 Level 2 Level 3 February 28, 2025
Fimed [rcaime Securities uso - ush 47,742,831 ush - S0 AT TALEIL
Forward Foregn Carrency
Exchange Contracts - 57,184 - BST.184
Total uso = LisD AR.600.015 LISD - S0 A8, 500,015
Liwbilitied gt Fair Vilos i Vidui 51
Lewi 1 Level ¥ Lewed 3 February 28, 2025
Forward Foregn Curmency
Excharge Contracts w50 - ush [137.720] LiSD - L] 1137.7300
Total [T - usD (137,720} LIsD - LVade] {137,720

During the yead endid February 28, 2025, there wene fo trinafen in of eut af Level 3, The Sesies Trust's policy i to determine
teveling and assess a1l transfers as at year end date.

Foveign Currency Transiation

Aasers and Eabilities held in currencies other than United States Dollas ("USDT or the “Functional Currency™) are translated
1o the Functional Currency at the rate of exchange prevailing at the financial staternent date. Income and expenses are
translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the date on which the income or expense is Incurred. Realized and unrealized
Bairs and losses arsing on foreign currency transactions ane included in the Statement of Operations in the period In which
thay oo

Thee: Series Trust does not isolate that partion of the results of operations resulting frem changes in foreign exchange rates
an investments fram the fluctuations arising from changes in market prices of securities held, Such fluctuations are included
with the net realized and unreatined gain or hoss from investments,

Incarmne Toxes

Undér the current laws of the Cayman lsandy, there are no incomes, withhalding, capital gaing or ather tiees payable by the
Series Trust. In certain jurisdictions other than the Cayman klands, foreign taxes may be withheld at sowrce an dividends and
interest recetved by the Sevies Trust. Capital gains derived by the Series Trust in such juisdictions generally will be exempt
fram foredgn Income or withholdng takes at source. The Sevies Trust intends to conduct its affales swuch that it will not be
subject to incomae tax kn any purisdiction. As a result, no provision for incomee taxes has been made in the financial statements,
Unithalder may be taxed an their proportionate share of the Secbes Trusts tae basis income based on their individual
ciftumstances,

Thee Series Trust follows the authertative guidance on accounting for and disclosure of uncertainty In tax positions (Financial
Accounting Standards Board ["FASE") - Accounting Standards Codification 740), which requires the Manager to determine
whether & tax position of the Series Trust is mare likely than not ta be sustained wpon examination by the applicable taing
authority, including resolution of any selated appeals or litigation processes, based an the technical merits of the position,
For tax positions meeting the mone likely than not threshold, the tax benefit recognized in the financial statements ks reduced
by the largest benefit that has a greater than fifty percent likelihood of being realized upon ultimate settiement with the
retlgwant tadng authority, The Manager has determined that there is minimal or ne effect on the financia statements being
undier Ehis authoritative guidance.

Fovwoard Foreign Currency Exchange Contracts

The Series Trust may enter into forward forelgn currency exchange contracts 1o hedge agalmt foreign curency exchange
rate risks on all or a partion of non-USE denominated imestments or for efficient portfodio management purposes. When
antering into a forward foreign cumenty eachange contract, the Sevies Trust agrees o receive or deliver a fooed quantity of
Toregn currency far an agreed-upan price on an agreed future date.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMEMNTS {continued)
For the ¥ear Ended February 28, 2025

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLUICIES {continued]

Forward Forelgn Currency Exchange Controcts [rontinued)

These contracts are  valued daily, and the Series Trust's net equity therein, representing  unrealized
appreciationfdepreciation) on the contracts as measured by the d@ference between the forward foreign currendy exchange
rated a1 the dates of entry into the contracts and the forward rates a1 the reperting date, is intuded in the Statement of
Assets and Liabilities. Realized and unrealized gains and losses are included in the Statement of Operations.

Thesa Enstrumsents invalwe market risk, oredit risk, or both kinds of risks, in excess of the amount recognized in the Statement
of Assets and Liabilities, Risks arise from the possible inability of counterparties to meet the tesms of thelr contracts and
from movement in currency and securities values and interest rates. In addition to the Class bevel hedging
the Series Trust had net realized gains of USD 2,437,746 on 54 forward foreign currenty exchange contracts dusing the year
with an average notianal of USD 7,653,250 and an average term o maturity of 71 days. The Series Trust also had net realived
losses of USD 3,498,922 on 35 forward foreign currency exchange contracts hedd at the Class IfY Hedged level during the
year with an average notional of USD 6,027,348 and an average term to matwrity of 78 days. The average notional of the
forward fareign currency eachange contracts held for class level hedging throughout the year Is broadly consistent with the
WAy of the IPY class at each point in time.

The assets of the Sevees Trust may be held in one or mose ourrencies, and the Series Trastwill, in principle, engage in currency
hedging between the currency of denomination of each Class (LS. Dollar for USD Class and lapanese Yen Tor JPY Class) and
the currency of the lnvestments in the underying portfolio, provided, however, that such hedging for JFY Class may be
perfarmed through the U5 Dollar,

Cash and Fareign Currency
Cash and fargign currgncy comprises all currengy hald with the Custodian, and gwernight and other shert term placements
with other financial institutions.

UHITS

Thee niet assets of the Seres Trust ane divided into JPY Class Units and USD Class Units, The Units are denominated in Japanese
Yo and Linited States. Dollar. JPY Class Units and USD Class Units are available to an eligible investor who b anvy person,
corporation or entity which i not (i} a citizen or resident of the LL5., a partnership arganized or existing in the U5, ar any
corporation, trust of othér entity organined under the lows of or exiting in the US; (5} a persan ar entity resident or domiciled
in the Cayman [slands (excluding sny abject of a charitable trust o power o an exemptied ac non-résident Cayman Islands
comparry); {ii] vnable to subsoribe for o hold Lnits without violating applicable laws, or (iv) a custedian, nomines, of thustee
far ary person, corporation or entity described in (1) to (i) above. Bath the JFY and USD classes share proporticnately in the
gains and losses of the Series Trust level investments., In addition, the JPY class receive s gaing and bosses from the FX foreards
hedd at the JFY Class level for hiedging purpases. Refer to Note 1 for further details on the Sevies Trust's currency hadging
strabigy.

The Manager may detesmine 10 issee one or more classes of Units of the Series Trust withowt prior notice te oF written
consent of the Unithalder.

Al of thie net assets attributabile to JFY Class Units and WSD Class Units are held by one nomines account Unitholdes.

I Elasy WS0 Chass Total Serles Trust

Balance at February 29, 2024 ust 8,305,192 USD 571218 USD  SSOTRATL
Sulbicriptiond dufing 1he yiae LEMOATO 11LE95,753 14,704,932
Redemptions during the year {12085,233) {5.986,182] [12.011,415)
Castritartiors [B6,3a7) (1,091, 546] [1.917 543)
T iRCEREsR in et aRels risulling Trom operatong A19.409 &L 207.283 LA1659T
Mgt Asdets ol Februany 28, DOES UsD 1RE6TLISD USD ARTOTART USD 52469637
Bumbsre af Linits in issust @t February 29, 2024 531,704 2E96.6T0 3.228.374
Units issued during the year 34612 1,319,857 1,354 440
Units rsdsemied during the year [FB0LETS] 10611 [E30.937]
Sumber of Units in isgise 51 Febrosry 28, 312 345 891 1LADE.015 LTS1906
et Asiel Value per Unit o Februsry 28, 3025 2] 53,08 USD 992
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the ¥ear Ended February 28, 2025

UNITS {eontinued)

Subseriptions for Lmits

A0 Class Units were first |ssped at an initial issue price of WSO 10,00 per Unit, JFY Class Units were first issued at an initial
sz price of JPY 10,000 per Unit. On and after initiad dosing day, the minimum initial subscription for W50 Class Units per
subadriber is 10 Units or more, and in maltiples of 1 Unit thisreafter. The minimum initial dubscription for IPY Class Units per
subseriber is 1 Unit ar more, and in multiples of 1 Units thereafter,

The Manager may waive or change the minimum Intial and additional subscripticn amounts set forth above in its sole
disgration from time to time.

Soles Chovge
In addithon to the subscription price, the apphicant shall pay a sales charge calcudated at up to 3% (escluding any tax
applicable] of the purchase price, to the Distributor.

Linit Redemprion

The Series Trust recognizes redemptions in accordance with the authoritative guidance on distinguishing Babsktses from
equity. Redemptions, whether expressed as United States Dollar, lapanese Yen or Units, are recognized as liabilities when
wach of the United States Dollar, Fapanese Yen and Unit amounts requested in the redemption notice becomes foed, which
generally may ocour either at the time of the receipt of the notice, or an the last day af a fiscal year, depending on the nature
of the request. As a result, redemptions paid after the end of the year, but Baded upan year end net assets are reflected as
redemptions payable at February 28, 2025, As of February Z8, 2025, there were no redempricns payable.

Repurchase af Limits

Each Unitholder may réquest a repurchass of Units by the Series Trust undess repurchases have been suspended by the
Manager. Units will be repurchased daily at the Net Adset Value per Unit as at the redevant Repurchase Day {each busingss
day, commencing on February 22, 2007, of such other day or days as the Manages may from time 1o time detenmine in
respect of the Series Trust also a (*Waluation Day®)). There will be no repurchase charge om repurchases of Wnits beld over
foeg years,

Compulsary Redemption

I thee event that this Trustee o the Manager shall determine that any Units of ary class of a Series Trust are being held by
or far the benefit of a persen wha i not an Eligible Investor for such Series Trust o that swech halding would cause the Trust
of the Series Trust 1o be reguired 1o register, be subject to tax or violate the baws of any jurisdiction, or if the Trustee or the
Manager has reason to doubt the legitimacy of the source of monses used to fund the subscription o purchase of such Units,
or for whatever reason (which may not be disclosed by the Trustee or the Manager to Unitholder] that the Trustes or the
Manager corsiders appropriate at its absolute discretion having regard to the interests of the Unitholder of the relevant
Chass ar the Unithalder of the Seried Trust ad o whole, then the Manager, after consultation with the Truites, may direct the
halder thereof to sell such Units within 10 days and provide to the Trustes and the Manager evidence of such sabe, failing
which the Manager may redeem such Units.

Termination of the Series Trust

Upon tesrmination, this Manager will realize all the assets of the Seres Trust, and after paying out or retaining adequate
provision for all Rabdéties properly payable and retaiming provision for the costs of the termination, the Trustee shall
distribute the proceeds of that realization to the Unitholder proportionately to their respective interests in the Series Trust
as of the date of termination of the Series Trust.

Distributions to Unitholder

The Mamager may, in its sole discretion, dedlare distributions and ne guarantee is made that these will ke place.
Distributions will be dedared on each Distribution Record Date and caloulated on each Ex-Distribution Date. Distribution
Peried Is a period commencing from the calendar day following the preceding Distribution Aecord Qate and ending on and
including the Distribution Record Date. The distributions will be paid on the relevant Distribution Payment Date, provided
that siech amount (if any] declared with respect to the relevant Class of Units in respect of the applicable Distribution Period
shall anly be paid out of the Series Trudt's pet income, realized and unrealized capital gains and any distributable funds of
thie Series Teust attributable te such Class of Units as determined by the Manager.

Thee dexlaration of distributions to Unitholder reduces the Class Level Mot Asset Value per Unit without any corresponding
change in the number of Class Level Units pes Unithalder. This results in a Unithalder™s overall immestment in the Series Trust
being reducied. In addition, ary distributions during a Distribution Period which are in excess of the Series Trost's net inorease
in net assets resulting from aperations results in a portion of the distribution beng return of capital

The amount of distributions, if any, will be determined by the Manager in its sole discretion, and no representation ar
guarantes is made that a distribution will be made in respect of gach ar any Distribution Pericd,

91/196



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the ¥ear Ended February 28, 2025

UNITS {eontinued)

Capitolination

Thee Mot Asset Value per Uinit |5 calculated for each Dealing Day (each Valuation Day, or such other day or days as the Manager
may from time te time determing in respect af the Series Toust), by dividing the difference bn value between the Seres Trust's
assets and liabilities (including accrued fies and expenses of the Serics Trust] by the number of Uinits eutstanding.

The Trust Deseed stipulates that the mumber of Units to be issweed in the Sered Toust shall be enlimited as the Manages shall
determine and shall be without par value.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

#Accounting Standard Codification (ASC) 815-10-50 requires disclosures about derbrative Instruments and hedging acthvities,
It requires that the Seres Trust disclose: a) how and why an entity uses derivative instruments, b) how derbvative instruments
and related hedged items are accounted for and ¢ how derivative instruments and related hedged items affect an entity's
fmancial position, fimancial perdformance and cash flows.

The Series Trust trangacts forward derivative instruments primarily for hedging purposes with each ingtrument’s primary risk
expasure being foreign exchange risk. The forward foreign currency exchange contracts held by the Sedies Trust do not gqualify
as hedges for accounting purposes under the requirements of ASC 815. The fair value of these derivative instruments is
inclded in the Statement of Assets and Liabilities with changes in fair valee reflected as realized gairs/|losses) or net change
in unrealized appreciation/ [depreciation) on derivatives within the Statement of Operations {Note 2}

Thet Series Trust may enter into an International Swaps and Derbvative Association, Inc. Master Agreament [*150A Master
Agreement”) with its counterparties in order to mitigate counterparty risk. The EDA Master Agreement is typlcally
negotizted by the Series Trut and its countenparties, containing the bi-lateral terms and conditions for all subsequent
derivative transactions. The 1504 Master Agreement allows for the netting of all amounts owed to ar due Tram counterparty
into a single net payment if a credit event or default should ooour,

The Series Trust has elected to not offset fair value receivables and payables for derwative contracts on the face of the
Statement of Assets and Liabilities.

At February 2, 2025 the Series Trust had entered into the following derivative assots by counterparty net of amounts
available for affset pnder 3 Master Netting Agreement [ “MNA"] and net of any collateral receivied by the Seses Trust:

LR Foi-cash Cash Mt Amoeant of

Coustterparty Subject 1o a MNA_ Avalable for Offset CoBateral Beceived Collateral Received Derivatin: Assets'
Goldman Sacks U0 2,581 USDH BT - usD - usD 2522
Byal Bank o Canbds 564 (B.564} - - -
State Sieeet Bank Ared Trust Co. 5,606 §5.606) - - -
UBS AG 765,250 - - - 765,250
Westpac Banking Corparation 73,111 (36,2151 - - 34,895
Tenal USD___ §57.84 USD  (SLERGUSD = UsD ~USD #0498

At February 28, 2025 the Series Trust had entered into the follawing derivative lisbilities by counterparty net of amounts
available for offset wnder a MMNA and net of any collabers pledged by the Soedes Trust:

Mt Amomnt of
Dprivative Liakslities Dativatingd Fan-cath Cath Dervathee
Coustrparty Subject 108 MNA  Avadable for Ot Collatersd Pledged  Call Pledged Liabilities"
Citibank MA usn BET USD - LISD = USD = LsD 687
Hoyal Bank of Canada 10,628 (B.564) - - 2,064
Seate Straet Bank And Trust Co. BE 189 (5606} = - B2583
Wstpac Baniing Conparation 38,216 (38,216} - - -
Tertal uso 137,720 USD (52,366} USD = LSD = Uso B5,334
Mot amount pipuali the nel amount receheaide)) brke friges 1 Aty in the evie of el
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMEMNTS {continued)
For the ¥ear Ended February 28, 2025

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUBMENTS [continued)

At Februany 18, 2035 the Sefies Trust had entered isto the following derivatives:

Al D thvid Lishiliy Darivativis
Derivatived Staternent Satemaent
Mot Accownted for as of Axsets and of Assets and
Hedping Instraments Liabiities Location Falr Walue Liabilithes Location Fair v luge
Forward foreign currency  Unerealized appreciation Urnirealized depreciation
exchange contracts o barward foreign on foreard fonzign
{Cuereney Fisk] curvency (1:24] 857,354 curneney exchangs WaD 11377200

Conlracis Lonfracis

The effect of derivative instruments on the Statement of Operathons for the year ended February 28, 2025;

Change in Wnnealned
Derivatives Location of Realized Appreciation or
Mat Aocowmnbed for b Gal o7 [Loid) Gain of [Ledd) (Beprecation) en
Hedping Instn 13 o on D
Foewand fongign currency Mot sealiced dokses on lorwasd Toneign
exchange contracts ourvEncy Exchange contracts;
§Crenoy Bik] change in unresfized apprecistion en [L0ELA%] LED Lsma
o forwand loreipn chaniie coniracis
MANAGEMEMT FEES

The Manager receives, out of the asiets of the Seried Truit, 8 management fee of a tatal of 0.65% per annum (0309 per
annam in respect of fee for the Manager and the Investment Manager and 0.35% per annum in respect of fee for the Sub-
Ivwestement Manager) of the Met Asset Value accreed on, and calculated as at, each Valuation Day and payable monthly in
arrears. In addition, the Manager also reimburses, out of the assets of the Serles Trust, for any expenses incurred by It in
the proper performance of its powers and duties a5 permitted under the Master Trust Deed, During the year ended
February 28, 2025, the Manager eamed fees of USD 341,004 of which UBD 20,093 is still outstanding as of February 28,
2025,

Thee Manager pays the fees of the Investment Manager out of its fees. The lnvestment Manages is responsible for paying the
fees of the Sub-investment Manager and any of the Investment Manager’s delegates or other parties appointed by the
Investment Manager to perfarm s functions in respect of the Servies Trust.

CUSTODLAN AND SUB-ADMINISTRATOR'S FEES

The Custodian and Sub-Administrater receives 8 custody fee caloulated and paid monthly based on total assets and
transaction volumae,

The Custadian and Sub-Administrator réciived, out of the dsets of the Séries Trust, oo administration fee (induding trandfer
agent fei] caleulated based an the Met Aset Valee s st each Valuation Day ot the following annual rate:

- 0L08% up to {and including) USD 250 million;

- 0.07% up to {and including) USD 500 million;

= 006% gver LISD 500 millign,

In addition to the abowe NAY based foe, there is o transactional based fee charged, which vares depending on the volweme
of transactians.

Such administration fee is payable monthly in arrears, and subject to the mindmem annual fee of S0 50,000, In addition,
the Custadian and Sub-Administrater alio recehes customary safekeeping fees and transaction charges. All out-of-pocket
expenses of the Custodian and Sub-Administrator are bome by the Series Trust. During the year ended Februarny 28, 2025,
the Custadian and Sub-Administrater earned fees of USD 161,289 of which USD 23,601 is still outstanding a5 of February
28, 2025,
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the ¥ear Ended February 28, 2025

TRUSTEE FEES

The Trustee receives, out of the assets of the Series Trust, a comibined fee at the rate of L015% per annum of the Net
Asset Value accrued on, and calculated as at, each Valuation Day and payable semi-annually in amears, subjecttoa
wminimum annsad fee of USD 15,000, During the year ended February 28, 2025, the Trustes easned foes of USD 14,998, and
there was an amaunt of USD 8577 itill utstanding as of February 28, 2025,

AGENT COMPANY'S FEES

Thee Agent Company receives, out of the assets of the Serles Trust, a fee at the rate of 0U0S% per annum of the MNet Asset
Value accrued on, and caltulated as at, each Valuation Day and payable quartely in arrears. During the year endied
February 28, 2025, the Agent Company eamed fees of USD 26,231 of which USD 11,372 is still outstanding as of February
28, 2025,

DISTRIBUTOR'S FEES

Thee Distributar recehaes, out of the astets of the Seried Trust, & fee at the rate of 0UE5% per annum of ths Net Asset Value
acorued on, and calculated as at, sach Valuation Day and payable quarterly in arfears. During the year ended February 28,
2025, the Distributor eanned fees of IS0 341,004 of which USD 42,597 is still cutstanding o5 of February 28, 2025,

DTHER FEES AND EXPENSES
The Administrator receves USD 1,500 per annuwm far FATCA § CRS compliande services
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Series Trust's activithes expose |t to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including price risk, interest rate risk, and
currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk

Market Risk
Al ipvestments present a risk of boss of capital. The Irvestment Manager moderates this risk through a careful selection af
sequrities and other financial instruements,

Their Series Trust's investmient management process is described in Mote 1. The primary determinant of the Senes Trust's
ability to mewt its objective of mid to long term capital apprediation while caming income is dependent an the performance
of i irvestmsents in corposate bonds and nates. The Series Trust's averall market positions ane manitered on a daily badis
By the Saries Trust's Investiment Manager.,

The walue of the Serles Trust's Investments b affected by a number of factors, inchuding but nat Emited to, changes in the
wider econamy, financial and currency markets, foreign currency exchange rates, interest rate movements and oredit ratings
of debt issuers.

Thee: Series Trust may enter into forward foreign currency sochange contracts which to vangdng degrees represent o market
risk in excess of the amount reflected on the Series Trust's Statement of Assets and Liabilities. The notional amount of the
contract represents the extent of the Serles Trust's participation in these financial instruments, Market risks assoclated with
such confracts arise dug to the possible movements in forelign exchange rates underlying these instruments.

Other market and éredit rgks indude the passibility that thire may be an iliguid market fer the contracts, that the change
in the value of the contract may not directly correlate with changes in the value of the underying currencies or that the
counterparty to a forward contract defaults on its obligation to perform under the terms of the contract. The Series Trust's
expasure to loss due o counterparty non-perfarmance on open forward foreign currency exchange conftracts s limited to
the unrealized appreciation inherent In such financiad instruments which are recognized in the Statement of Assets and
Lisbilities.

Inferest Rate Risk

Thee Series Trust's exposure 1o changes in interest rates relates peimarily to the Series Trust™s investments in delbt securities
contracts. Interest rate fluctuations may also affect the fakr value and pricing of derivathve instruments purchased or sold
shart by the Series Trust, The Imvestment Manager continupushy maniters the Seres Trust's esposune to interest rate risk
and thi Series Trust's overall intenest sensitivity on a reguisr basis.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the ¥ear Ended February 28, 2025

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {continued)

Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the potential loss that the Sevses Trust would incur if the counterparties or issuers of debt securithes
fasled to perform pursuant to the terms of their obligations to the Serles Trust. For exchange-traded contracts, the exchange
act a4 the countérparty to specific transsctions and, thérefore, bears the ride of delivery to and from couriterparties of
specific positions. The Series Trust's management does not consider that eredit risk related 1o open desivative contracts will
have material adverse effect on the financial condition of the Series Trust.

‘While both the U5, Bankruptcy Code and the Securities Investor Protection Act of 1970 seek to protect customer property
in the event of a failuse, nsolvency or bauidaticn of an institution, there is no certainty that, in the event of a failure of an
institution that has custody of Series Trust assets, the Serles Trust would not Incur losses due to its assets being unavallable
for a period of time, ultimately bess than full recowery of its assets, or beth, Because all of the Seres Trust's cash bs in custody
with a single ingtitution, such lasses could be significant and could materially impair the ability of the Series Trust to achieve
its irvestrnent abjective. The Series Trust is subject 1o eredit risk 1o the extent that this institution may be unable to fulfill its
abligations to repay amounts cwed,

Ligquidity Risk
Investars should be aware that the value of Lindts might fall as well as rise. Investmant in the Serses Trust imvehees a degree
of risk, theri can be no sssurance that the Seried Trust's insestmant objsctive will be achieved.

The Series Trust is exposed to daily repurchase of its Units but management believes that the Serses Trust has sulfichent
resources to meet the present and foreseeable needs of its business operations and, if necessary, the liquidity to fund
repurchases and achiewe a market position appropriately reflecting a2 smaller capital base. This position is monitored
continually by management to ensure that the Seres Trust has the ability to mect its obligations.

At February 28, 2025, substantially all the investments of the Series Trust were traded in the over-the-cownter market.

Currency Risk

Ther Sewies Trust holds irvestments denominated in LEED, which is the Series Trust's functional and presentational currency,
Howwer, the Series Trust expects to hedge Japanese Yen, the value of the Series Trust’s net assets attributable to IPY Class.
s a result, the Series Trust willl incur gainsflosses on its forward loreign currency exchange contracts which are used to
hedge the Y Class niet assets to Japanese Yen, and such gainslosses are fully allocated to JPY Class, Al such JPY hedging
gainglosses have been reflected in the total returns as presented In the Financial Highlights and are included in realized and
unrealized gains/losses in the Statement of Operations. Refer to Mote 1 for further details on the Seres Trust's currency
hedging strategy. The investment Manager monitors the Series Trust's currency expasure on a daily basis,

COMPAITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the normal course of business, the Trustee on behalf of the Series Trust may enter into contracts that contain a vaniety of
representations and warranties and which provide general indemnifications. The general Indemnifications apply not only te
the esfent such representations and warranties ang untrue but also may cover thind parties such as the Seres Trust's
Administrator, Auditor or Insestrmaent Manager for claims related to the services performed for the Series Trust. The Trustes's
maximum exposure whder 3ny such arrangements is unkndwn, as exposure only arises 1o the extent future daims that have
nat yet occurred are made against the Trustee, However, based on experience, the Trustee expects the rsk of loss to be
remate.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management performed a subsequent evems review up 1o July 9, 2025, which is the date the financial statements were
available to be issued,

Effective March 1, 2025 through luly %, 2025, there were subscriptions of USD 17,265 and there ware redemptions of
U5D 958,953 in respect of Class JPY Units. There were distributions of USD 233,559 in respect of Class IPY Units.

Effective March 1, 2025 through July 9, 2025, therns were subseriptions of USO 2,410,704 and there were redemptions of
USD 1,087,938 in respect of Class USD Units. There were distributions of USD 421,728 in respect of Class USD Units.

Thaere are nvp other significant events to report as they relate to the Serles Trust.
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2024 29
NB
2024 29
54,199,097 54,452,255 7,885,231
144,516 20,927
510,364 512,686 74,242
99,910 14,468
1,017,492 147,343
633,326 91,712
64,331 9,316
56,924,516 8,243,239
246,741 35,731
1,443,769 209,072
50,776 7,353
23,878 3,458
21,331 3,089
20,201 2,925
12,002 1,738
11,394 1,650
17,053 2,469
1,847,145 267,485
55,077,371 7,975,754
70,443,664 10,200,947
(15,366,293) (2,225,193)
55,077,371 7,975,754
4,386,108,087
531,704 8,249
25,772,179
2,696,670 9.56 1,384
144.81
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NB
2024 29
1,350 2,220,076 321,489
229 33
2,220,305 321,522
351,471 50,897
351,471 50,897
135,398 19,607
27,036 3,915
26,824 3,884
15,039 2,178
10,025 1,452
21,142 3,062
938,406 135,891
1,281,899 185,632
(1,232,937) (178,542)
(6,090, 695) (881,994)
(7,323,632) (1,060,535)
5,446,561 788,716
237,105 34,335
5,683,666 823,052
(1,639,966) (237,483)
(358,067) (51,852)
144.81
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2024 29
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1,281,899 185,632
(7,323,632) (1,060,535)
5,683,666 823,052

(358,067) (51,852)
(1,240,396) (179,622)

(795,179) (115,150)
(2,035,575) (294,772)
3,384,598 490,124
9,785,058 1,416,974
(6,939,188) (1,004,864)
(1,596,423) (231,178)
4,634,045 671,056
2,240,403 324,433
52,836,968 7,651,321
55,077,371 7,975,754




NB

LLC

NB

2012 10 15

UFJ

2024

2021

29

2016 12 16

2017 22
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2024 29
2024 29
54,452,255 54,452,255
633,326 633,326
55,085,581 55,085,581
2024 29
(1,443,769) (1,443,769)
(1,443,769) (1,443,769)
2024 29
FASB ASC 740

50
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56 7,572,002 70 1,273,943
30
9,676,215 84 4,736,897
)
)
) ) )
)
FX
2023 28 36,434,785 16,402,183 52,836,968
3,384,598 9,785,058 13,169,656
(6,939,188)  (1,596,423)  (8,535,611)
(1,240,396) (795,179)  (2,035,575)
(2,334,607) 1,976,540 (358,067)
2024 29 29,305,192 25,772,179 55,077,371
2023 28 597,833 1,804,763 2,402,596
58,440 1,061,557 1,119,997
(124,569) (169, 650) (294,219)
2024 29 531,704 2,696,670 3,228,374
2024 29 55.12 9.56
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10.00

10,000
10

2024 29
2024 29 246,741

2017 22

10
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ASC  815-10-50

a b
c
ASC 815
ISDA 1SDA
1SDA
2024 29 MNA
MNA
(&

Royal Bank of Canada 2,670 (2,670)
State Street Bank And Trust Co. 590,384 (22,196) 568,188

Westpac Banking Corporation 40,272 (40,272)
633,326 (65,138) 568,188

2024 29 MNA
MNA
@

Goldman Sachs 962 962
Royal Bank of Canada 5,925 (2,670) 3,255

State Street Bank And Trust Co. 22,196 (22,196)
Westpac Banking Corporation 1,414,686 (40,272) 1,374,414
1,443,769 (65,138) 1,378,631

@

2024 29
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633,326 (1,443,769)

2024 29

(6,010,840) 248,010
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0.30
2024
2024 29 23,878
0.08 2.5
0.07 2.5
0.06
80,000
2024 29
135,398 2024 29 11,394
15,000
15,039 2024 29
2024 29
29 12,002
2024 29
50,776
FATCA/CRS
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0.65
0.35
29 351,471
0.015
2024 29
21,331
0.05
27,036 2024
0.65
351,471 2024
180,000
1,500



11

LIBOR

LIBOR 2021
LIBOR 2023
LIBOR
LIBOR

1970
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2024 29
12
13

2024
2024 2024 86,577
3,180,183 246,407
2024 2024 3,550,434
440,080 254,065
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Aswris
levvastmats In securities, ot value (com of LISD 54,195.087)
Cash

Foralgn cuifandy, 8t value {oodt of UWE0 510,364}
FRecshvabie for Units lssued

irtarest receivable

Unrealived sppreciation an forwerd foreign curmency sachangs comracts
it sty

Torinl assats

Uit

Parable for Lnfts redeemied

Uinraaliced depreciation on forward fomsign cumenty axchangs contracs
Acenoed distrlutor's fees

Accrepd menspamant fee

Accnoed trustes fees

et Auiset Valoa par Unit
{PY Cluss IPY 4,386, 108,007 + 531,704 Unihs cutstarclieg]
LD Class USD 25,772,179 & 1,696,670 Linita cutstmnding)

usD 452,233

Thie Bcompanying notes are an integral part of these financial sextements.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

For the Year Ended February 25, 2024

[Expressed in Unibed States Dollar)

metment Incoemie:

iberest (net of withholding tmees. of W50 1,350} uso 22800078

Miscelanecus Income 29
Todal Ievestmint income 2,230,305

Fprin:

Distributor's fees 514N

Management toml 151,471

Cuestrd b ane sub-administrators fees 135 388

igent company’s fees 27,086

Professtonal fees 26,824

Trastee feed 15,099

Transber agean fees 10,625

Ot exparEes 21,142
Total Exponses 938,406

Mt | FrestTiant Irconme 1281805

Ruaitzed gadrs{los) aad changs in unrasiied spprecion/dapracirton):
Reakaed

TervRSLNENES in Seuritie (L232,937)
Net realined kbases {7,323 532}
Changs in unresiited apprecistion/fdepreciation)
Terwestments In securithes 5446 561
Forelgn curmency tranilsthons and foreard foreign currency exchengs comlrects 137,105
Met change In unreslired appreciation 5,683,666
Mt realined and change in unrnidlzed lasses and appreciation {1633 56E)
Mk ecruase in net amel reuliseg from opsation. LsD {358,067)

The stcompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
For the Year Ended February 15, 2024

[Expressed in Unibed States Dollar)
Increese (Decreass] In Met Assets from:
Dparuidsng:
Het imvestrment inoome uso 12808
Rt rid e d loded (A LR e ]
Nt churgs in unrealleed sppreciation 5,663,666
Nt decreans in rat ssnets Pesudting from epenation {358,057}
Dastrikestions to U nithalden
=" {1240, 736)
USD Chs (795,179}
Tortal Dignributions {2,035 575)
Capits] Transactions:
Linits lenmed
JPY Clases {58,480 Ui} 3,384,298
U0 Gl {1,061 557 Unitsh 4,708, 058
Links redesmed
JFY Clasm (124,569 WAnils) {6,939, 158}
LS Tl (168,650 Unis)
Wt increasa in net saets resulting from capial traesactions A, 534,045
Total Increass in Met Assats 2,240,403
et Asserte:
Baglewring of yesr 52,836,968
Ersd of yotar W mn

The stcompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Year Ended February 15, 2024

NEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund (the “Series Trust™) 15 a seres trust of the Nikko AM Offshore Funds, an opan-
ended unit trust established by a supplemental trust deed dated December 16, 2016 (the “Supplemental Trust Deed®],
under thie lxws of the Chyman [slands. Nikko AM Dffshore Funds was established by & master rust deed dated October 15,
20132 (the “Master Trust Deed®], under the laws of the Cayman istands ond is licensed with the Cayman tslands Monetary
Authority pursuant to section 4{1Ha) of the Mutual Funds Act [2021 Revision). The Series Trust commenced operations on
February 22, 2017,

The Series Trust's assets are managed on & day-to-day basis by Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited (the “Manager”). The
Manager delegates imvestmant maragement duties to Niko Assat Managament Co., Ltd, [the “Imvestment Mamager”].
The imeestment Manager delegates imeestment management duties 1o Meubsrger Berman investment Advisers LLC, (the
“Sub-imvestment Manager™). The adminlstration of the Seres Trust is delegated to Brown Brothers Hamiman & Co. (the
“Custodizn” and “Sub-Administrator”], 8 Bmited parnership organized under the liws of the Strte of New York.

The bmeestmaent objective of the Series Trust b to achigws a mid to long term total return through Tncome and capital
appreciation. The Series Trust shall mainly invest in bath investment grade and nonHnvestment grade hybeid securities that
are lssued by non-finandsl corporate lssuers and have been rabed by elther of Moody's, SEP or Rtch. The highest rating
fram all three of these agencies shall be applied to esch corporate hybrid security snd the sversge rating of the portfolio
shall be BBE-/Baad or above.

Corporate fybrid detit sscurities ang structungd instruments that combine both equity and fixed Income characheristics that
generaily offer 3 means for issuers w borrow meney from imestors in retum for interest payments. Such corporate issuers
may utifize hybrid debt for 3 variety of reasons, inchuding bolstering their caplal levels, lowering thedr welghted average
cost of capital, diversifying thelr funding sources and managing credit ratings. Thaugh tevms and conditions have become
Increasingly standardined, the specific characteristics of each Instrumant [such as paymant conditions, the ratio of dabt and
equity-like fextures, time frames and applicable rates) can vary.

The Series Trust may also vest in fixed and Noating rote debt securities, iIncluding bonds, ssued by povernments and
Eovernment related entitias

Dervative Instrum ents will be used for efickent portfollo management and/for nvestment purpeses, & well as for hedging.

Under the terms of the Supplemental Trust Deed and the Master Trust Deed, FirstCaribbean Interrational Bank and Trust
Company (Cayman) Limited [the “Trustee™ and the “Administrator”) is named as Trustes of the Series Trust.

The Manager sppointed Mitsubishi UFJ Morgan Stnley Securities Co., Ltd to st as Agent Company [the “Agent Company™)
and the Manager appoired Mitsublshl UF) Morgan Stankey Securities Co., Ltd to act as Distributor [the “Distributor®) of
Units Im Japan or such other person or Institution as may be appointed as distributor of tha Sarkes Trust by the Marager
Trofm tirme to tme

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Series Trust is an imestment company that follows the sccounting and reporting guidance in FASE Accounting
Smndards Codification 946,

Uise of Estimotes

The accompanying financial statements have besn prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally sccepted in
e United States of America {U.5. GAAP®). The preparation of firencal smtements in sccordance with U5, GAAP requines
the Serles Trust's management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
labi¥ties and disdosures of contingent assats and Habliites at the date of the finandal stataments and the reported
amounts of neverwes and expenses during the reporting period. Actual redults, including the ultimate samtunt realized
upon the sale af falr valued Investments, could differ from thase estimates and such differences may be sigrificant.

Basls of Accounting

Secusity and contractual transactions are recorded on a trade/ontract-date basks Interest ingome ks recorded on an
effective yvield basts, net of any applicable withholding tax |mterest expense and other expentes bre recorded on an socrual
basls. Reafized galrs and losses from security transactions are computed cn the basks of the merage cost of the securithes
sold or covered. Changes in the valuadon of investments are recorded in the Swement of Operations 3 wnrealized
appreciation or depreciation.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 15, 2024

Valiwation of investments

Bonds and other debt securities, Including restricted securlties {other than short-term obllgatiors but Including listed
o) are Fair valued at their kst sabe price in the principal market in which such securities are normally traded, on the
basks of valuatbons furnished by & pricing serdce, use of which has been approved by the Investment Manager, or i no sale
has ocourmed, the bid price on the valuation date a5 provided by brokers who are market makers In e securities. Al debt
securities with less than 12 months to maturdty date, in principle thall be fair valued using an amordzed cost effectad by an
affective yiald accumulated/amortization mathod to thelr maturity date with adjustmants based on comparison with
markst prices as required.

In sccordance with the authoritative guidance on fair value messurements and disclosures under LS. GAAP, the Serles
Trust discloses the fair value of its investments in @ hierarchy that pricritizes the inputs 1o valuation techniques used to
measung the fair valug. The hierarchy ghres the highest priority to valuations based upon unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or kabilities [Level 1 measurement) and the lowest priority o valuations based upon
unobservable inputs that are significant o the valustion [Level 3 measurements), The guldance estmblishes three levels of
the fair value hierarchy as follews:

*  Livvel 1 —Imparts that reflect unadjusted quoted prices In acthve mariets for identical investments that the Seres
Trust has the ability to sccess ot the measurement dute;

= Lovel 3 = Inputs other than guoted prices that are significant and cbsarvable for the asset or Rabisty either
directly or Indirectly, Inchading Inpats In markets that are not considered to be acthe;

= Level 3= inputs that are significant and uncbservable

Imputs are used in applying the varlpus valuation techniques and broadly refar to the assumptions that markaet participants
et make valuxtion decisions, inchding asumptions sbout risk. Inputs may include price information, specific and broad
credit duts, liguidity statistics, snd other factors. A financlal Enstrurment’s level within the falr value Werarchy 15 based upon
the kowest level of amy Input that b significant o the fair value measurement. However, the determination of what
constitutes “observable” requires significant judgment by the Imestment Manager. The Investment Manager conskders
obsorvabile data o be marknt data which i readily svailable, regularly distributed or updated, refiabe and veriflable, not
proprietary, and provided by Independent sounces that ane actively imvolved In the relevant market. The categorization of a
finandial instrument within the hierarchy i based upon the pricing transparency of the irstrument and does nat necessarily
earrespend o the Investment Marage:'s percoived sk of that Instrument.

Imvestments whose values ane based on the quoted market prices in active markets, and therefore dassified within Level 1,
would Include actively traded equities, certsin LS. govermment and soversign obligations, and certaln money market
securities. The Investment Manager would not adjust the quoted price Tor such instruments, even in sibarions whene the
Saries Trust hald a large position and 3 sale could reesorably Impact the quoted price.

Imvestrnents that trade In markets that are not considened 10 be acth, but are valued based on quated mariet prices,
dizaler guotations o altemative pricing sources supported by observable inputs are classified within Level 2. These include
Invastrnent-grade debl securites, shosrt-term Investments and forward forelgn currency exchange contrects. As Level 2
Tvestmants include positions that ane not tradied In active markets and/or ane subject to transkar rstrictons, valuations
iy ba ad]isted to refect iiquidity andyor non-trarsferability, which are gengrally based gn available market Information.

Imeestments clssified within Level 3 have significant unchsenvable inputs, as they would trade infrequently. Level 3
Instrumants would Include assat-batoed securites and collateralited mortgage cbilgetions. As obsarvable prices am not
available for those securities, the Seried Trust would use valuation techalques o derve the fair value,

The inputs or methodology used for valuing securities are not necessarily an indication of the risk asodated with Irvesting
n those securites.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 15, 2024

Waluation of investments (continued)]

The following table presents the financial Instruments Gimed on the Statement of Assets and Liabiiithes by caption and by
level within the wvaluation héerarchy as of February 29, 2024, Further disssifications of the financial imtruments are
prasaented In the Portfollo of |mestments.

Asaats a1 Falr Valne Failr Wuhm at
Laved 1 Lawei 2 Lo 3 Fabruary 29,2024
Pl heacsirr Securitied L) - usD 54,452,255 usD - usn S E52755
_Exchaega Coacts - 633,25 el
Tou v -~ o mmssn o o women
UlshiBthes ot Falr Valse Falr Valiz ot
tevel3 tovei2 Lovel3 February 23, 204 _
Forward Foreign Currency
Excharge Contracty wvig = o {1443, 769) LSD = UsD 11443, 765]
Total 1sD — U0 passges)  uso = U [Laa7e)

During the year ended February 28, 2024, thers were nd transfers in o out of Level 3, The Seres Trust's policy is to
determing kevelling and assess all transhers 35 at 3 year end date.

Forefgn Currency Transiotion

Assets and Babifitias held in currencles other than United Smites Dollar (*USD" or the “Functional Currency™) are transiated
to the Functional Currency at tha rite of exchange prevaling at the financal satement date. Income and expenses are
tranglated at the rate of guchange prevalling at the date on which the incomg or gupgnse |5 Incurrgd. Realfized and
unrealized gaing and losses arising on forsign cunrency transactions are induded in the Strement of Operations in the
period In which they ooour.

The Series Trust does not solate that portion of the results of operations resulting from changes in forelgn exchange rates
on Investments from the fuctuations arsing from changes In market prices of securithes held. Sudh Auctustions are
Included with the net realtred and unrealized gain or loss from investments,

Income Taxes

Under the current laws of the Cayman lalands, there are no incomes, withholding, capital gains or ather taxes payable by
the Serles Trust In certaln jurisdictions other than the Cxyman lsands, forelgn tases may be withheld at source on
dividends and interest recedved by the Series Trust. Capital gains derived by the Series Trust in such jurisdictions generally
will be exempt from forelgn Income or withholding taes at source. The Serles Trust intends to conduct 1ts affalrs such that
It will not be subject to income tax in any jurisdiction. As a result, no provision for income taxes has been made in the
financlal satements. Unithalder may be taxed on thelr proportionate share of the Serfes Trust's tax basis Income based on
thizir indhvidiuad circumstsnoes.

The Seres Trust follows the authorftative guldance on accourting for and discdosure of uncertainty In tax positions
[Financial Accownting Standards Board [*FASE") - Acoounting Standards Codification 740}, which requines the Manager to
determing whether 3 tix podition of the Series Trust i more lkely than Aot to be sustained upon examingtion by the
applicable txing sutherity, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical
merits of the position. For tax positions meetng the more likely than not threshold, the tax benefit recognimd in the
fnanclal statements Is reduced by the largast benafit that has a greater than fifty percent ikelikood of being realtzed upon
ultimate settlement with the relevant taxing authority, The Manager has determined that there 1§ minimal or no effect on
the financial smtements belng under this authoritathe guidance.

Forword Forelgn Currency Exchange Controcts

Thie Serles Trust may enter Into forwand forelgn curfency exchange contracts 1o hedge agalnst forelgn cumency exchange
rate risks on all of a porton of non-USD denominated investments of for efficient portfalio management purpases. When
entering Into @ forward forelgn cumency exchange contract, the Serles Trust agrees to recelve or deliver a fxed quantity of
foreign currency for an agresd-upon price on an agreed future date. These contracts ane valued dally, and the Serkes Trust's
nat aquity therain, representing unrealited appreclationf|depreclation} on the contracts a5 measured by the difference
batwaen the forward forsign curmendy exchange rates at the dates of antry into the contracts and the forward etes at the
reporting date, Is Inciuded In the Statement of Assets and Labiities. Reslized and unrealtzed gains and losses are inchuded
n the Smtement of Operations.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 15, 2024

Forward Forelgn Currency Exchamge Comtrocts [continued]

These Instruments involve market risk, credit risk, of both kinds of risks, In exoess of the amount recognized In the
Statemnent of Assets and Labilities. Risks arise from the possible imability of counterparties to meet the terms of their
contracts and from movement In cumency and securites values and Interest raetes. In addition to the Class level hedging.
the Serles Trust had net realized losses of USD 1,273,943 on 56 fonward forelgn currency exchange contracts during the
year with an average notioral of USD 7,572,002 and an average term to maturity of 70 days. The Series Trust aleo had net
raafized losses of USD 4,736,837 on 30 forward forelgn currency exchange contracts hald at the Class IFY Hedged lavel
during the year with an average notional of USD 5,676,215 and an average term to maturity of B4 days. The average
natisnal of the forward foreign currency exchange contracts held for class level hedging throughoar the year i broadly
consistent with the WAV of the JPY dass ateach paint in ime.

Ther assats of dee Serfes Trust may be hald in one o mare curnenclis, and the Sedes Trust will, In principle. engage in
currency hedging betwsen the currency of denomination of gach Class (US. Dollar for USD Class and lapanese Yen for IFY
Class) and the currency of the imestments in the underlying portfolio, provided, however, that such hedging for IPY Class
reary bt prfiormad through the U.S. Dallar.

Cazh ord Foreign Currency
Cash and foreign currency comprises all curmency held with the Custodian, end overnilght and other short term placements
with ather financisl institutions.

UNITS

The net assets of the Serbes Trust are divided Imto JPY Class Uniis and USD Class Units. The Units are denominated in
Japanese Yen and United States Dolfar, JPY Class Units and USD Class Units are avallzble o an aligible Investor who is any
parsan, corporation or gntity which ks not (1} a citizen or resident of the US., 3 partnarship organined or éodsting In the LLS.,
©F ANy COFPOTALIoN, trust of other entity ofganized under the laws of or existing in the US; (5] a person or entity resident or
domiciled in the Cayman lslands (exclading any object of 3 charitable trust or power of Bn exempied of non-resident
Cayman ldands company]; (i)} unable to subscribe for or hald Units without violating applicable laws, or (k) a custodian,
noamings, of rustes for ary persen, corporation or entity described In [1] to (I1) abowve. Both tha JPY and USD classes share
proportionately in the gaing and losses of the Series Truss hevel Imestments. In additan, the JPY dass receives gains and
losses from the FX forwards held at the JPY Class level for hedging purposes. Refer 1o Note 1 for further detalls on the
Series Trust's cusmency hedging strategy.

Tha Manager may daterming to lisue one or more classes of Unlts of the Series Trust without prior notice 1o o wiitten
iconsent of the Unitholder.

All of the net assets attributable to JPY Class Unlts and USD Class Units are held by one nomines account Unitholder,

1P Clan S Clads Tedtal Sarka Trust
Balarcs st Februsry 26, D023 5D I5ERTE5 USD  16A001E3 USD 52,836,960
Subscriptions during the year 3,384 558 5,785 058 13,169,656
Redurmptians during the yeer {6,339, 188) 13,596,433} (8,535,611}
Destriutions [1.240,356) {795,179) |&035,575)
pet [decreasa)immeste n net amgts resdting from aperstions. {2,334 607 1,576 540 (358,067}
Mot Assets at Faboury 29, 7004 USD 19305157 LBD 35772179 USD  E5O7737L
Humbser of Units In lssus st February 28, 2003 547 533 1,504,763 2,402,596
Units lssund during the year 58,440 1,061,557 1,119,997
Units redeemed during the year {124,568) [169,550) [284,218)
Mumiser of Linits i issue st February 25, 2004 1,704 2,566 70 3FIRITE
Pet Adset alue per Uinft st Pebnaary 29, 2004 ] 5512 USD 955
Sulwcriptions for Units

USD Class Uinits were first issued at an initial Bsue price of USD 10.00 per Usit. JPY Class Units were first issued a1 an initial
tssue price of MY 10,000 per Unit. On and after inltlal cosing day, the minimuem |nftlal subscriptdon for USD Class Units per
subscriber b5 10 Units or more, and in muftiphes of 1 Uit thereafoer, The minimum inftial subscription for JPY Clags Units
par subscrber 15 1 Unit or more, and In muitiples of 1 Units thereafier,

The Manager may waive or change the minimum inital and additional subseription amourts set Forth above in s sale
discretion from time 1o dme.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 15, 2024

UNITS [continued)

Sales Chorge
In sckdition to the subscription price, the applicant shall pay a sales charge calculated at wp o 3% [excuding any tax
applicabla) of the purchase prica, to the Distributar.

Unit Redemption
Thi Serles Trust recagnizes redemptions in accordance with the suthovitathee guidance on distnguishing labilities from
equity. Redemptions, whather axprassed as United States Dollar, lspanese Yan or Units, are mcognized as liabilties when
each of the Unived States Dollar, apanese Yen and Unit amourtts requested in the redermption potios becomes ficed, which
generally may ocour either 3t the time of the receipt of the notice, ar on the last day of 3 fscal year, depentding on the
nature of the request As 3 result, redemptions paid after the end of the year, but based wpon year end net assets are
reflected a5 redemptions peyable at February 29, 2024. There were USD 246,741 of redemptions payable as at February
29, 1024, Induded as Payable for Units redesmed In the Statemant of Assets and Liabdlities.

Repurchose of Lintty

Ench Urilthalder may request & rapurchase of Unlts by the Series Trust unless repurchases have boen suspendad by the
Manager, Units will be repurchased dally at the Met Asset Value per Unit a5 ot the relevant Repurchase Day (each business
day, commencing on February 22, 2017, or such other day or days 25 tha Manager may from time to time determing In respect
of the Series Trust also a [*Valustion Day®]). There will be no repurchase charge on repurchases of Units held over five years.

Compulsony Redermation

In the event that tha Trustes or the Manager shal determine that amy Units of any class of a Serles Trust are being held by
o for the benefit of a person who s not en Efigible Irvertor for such Series Trust or that such holding would cause the
Trust of the Serles Trust to be requlred to reglstar, be subject to tax of violate the laws of any jurisdiction, or If the Tnestee
or the Manager has reason 1o doubt the legitimacy of the source of monies used to fund the subscription or purchase of
such Units, or for whatever reason [which may not be disclosed by the Trustee of the Marager to Unitholder) that the
Trustee or the Manager considers appropriate at (s absolute discretion having regurd to the intererts of the Unitholder aff
the relevant Class or the Unithelder of the Serles Trust as @ whole, then the Manager, after consultation with the Trustes,
may direct the holder thereof to sell such Units within 10 days and provide to the Trustee and the Manager evidence of
such sale, faliing which the Manager may redeem such Uinits.

Termination of the Series Trast

Upon termination, the Manager will reallze all the assets of the Serles Trust, and after paning out of retalning adequats
pravigon for all Rebilities properly payable and retaining prosislon for the costs of the termination, the Trustee shall
dlstribrte the procseds of that realiztion to the Unilthaldar proportonataly to thelr respective Interests [ the Series Trust
s of the date of termination of the Series Trust.

Distributions to Linitholider

The Manager may, in its sole discretion, declare distributions ond no guarintee is made that these will ke place.
Distributions will be declared an each Distribution Record Dute and calculated on each Ex-Distribution Date. Distribution
Peried b5 @ period commendng from the calendar day following the preceding Disibution Reccrd Date and ending on and
Including the Distribution Record Date. The distributions will ba paid on the relmant Ditribution Payment Date, provided
that such ameunt (I any] declared with respect to the relevant Class of Units In respect of the applicable Distribution
Peried shall only be paid out of the Seres Trust's et income, realized and unreafived capitsl gains and any distibutable
furds of the Series Trust attributable to such Class of Units 23 determined by the Manager.

The declaration of distributions to Unitholder reduces the Class Level Met Aset Vahos per Unit withaut any corresponding
change In the rumber of Class Level Units per Unitholder. This results In a Unitholder's averall Imvestmint In the Serbes
Trust being reduced. in additon, any disoributions during a Distribation Perdod which are in excess of the Serles Trust's net
Increasa in pet assats resulting from cperations results In a portion of the distribution being return of caplial.

The amount of distributions, B any, will be determined by the Manager in its sale discretion, and no regresentation or
guarantes is made that a distribution will be made in respect of each or any Distribution Period.

CapleaEration
Thie Met Assat Walue per Usk is ealeulsted for esch Daaling Day [each Valuation Day, of such ather day or diyt &8 the
Manager may from time to tme determine in respect of the Serles Trust), by dividing the difference In value between the
Series Trust's assets and liabilities (including accrued fees and experses of the Series Trust) by the number of Unis
cutstanding.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 15, 2024

UNITS (continued)

Copltairation [contimed]
The Trust Deed stipulates that the number of Units 1o be issued in the Series Trust shall be unlimited as the Marager shall
determing and shall ba without par value.

DERMVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Accountng Standard Codification (ASC) 815-10-50 requires disclosures about derhvative Instruments and hedging activities.
It requires that the Series Trust dbclosss a) how and why an entity uses derhative instruments, b) how dervative
Instruments and related hecged ttems ane accounted for and ¢) how derivative Instruments and related hedged fems
affect an emtity's financial pesition, Anandal performance and cash Rows.

The Series Trust transects forwand derivative instroments primarily for bedging purnposes with each instrument’s primany
risk expasure being fareign exchange risk. The forward forelgn currenty exchangs contracts held by the Serles Trust do not
qualify a3 hedges for aocounting purposes under the reguirements of ASC B15. The hir valee of these derivative
Instrumants is included In the Sttement of Assets and Uabilities with changes in fir value refiected a5 realized
gains/{losses) or net change in unrealized appreciation{depreciadon] on derivatives within the Smtement of Opentions
[Nota 2).

The Serkes Trust may enter inta an International Swaps and Derbvative Assoctation, Inc, Master Agreement [5DA Master
Agreement®) with itz courterparties in order to mitigate counterparty risk. The ISDA Master Agreement 1s typically
negotiated by the Series Trust and Ms courterparties, contzining the bi-lateral terms and condidons for all subsequent
derhvative transactions. The I50A Master Agreement allows for the netting of all amounts owed o or due from
counterparty Into a single net paymant Ifa credit event of dafalt should occur,

The Serkes Trust has elected to not offset fair value recelvables and payabdes for derhative contracts on the fece of the
Statement of Arsets and Liabiliites.

At February 29, 2024 the Serfes Trust had entered Into the fallowing dertvative assets by counterparty net of amounts
available for offset under a Master Netting Agreement (“MMA®) and met of sny collsters] recebed by the Seres Trust:

Darhuthes AZBkEs Dathadves Hona-cmh Cash Wt Amount of
(Countarparty Subject toa MMA_ Availsbie for Offsst Collaberal Recaived Colatersl Received Derivative Assats’
Royal Bank of Canada usD LETD USD [2,570) USD T - uso -
Seate Street Bank And Trust Co. 590,334 [X2 1961 = = 568 1ER
‘Weripac Basking Corponstion 40,172 [4a0372) - - -
Total USD 3306 USD [§5.3) USD ~uso U senams

At February 29, 2024 the Serles Trust had entered Into the following dervative llabilittes by counterparty net of amounts
available for oifset under 8 MNA and net of sy collateral pledged by the Series Trust:

et Amount of
Derbvmtive Unbilitles  Derivrtves Hon-Cmsh Cash Dertvutive:
Caunterparty Sulsject toa MMA_Avallsbie for Offsst _Collateral Fladged Collateral Pladged Limls it
Goldman Sacka uso [T - usD - s - UsD [=]
Riryal Bank of Canada 5,035 [T = = 3,355
Starte Strest Bark And Trust Ca 22,196 - - -
Wertgae Banibing Corporation.____ LAJAGES MOITE) o 1L .
Total 501,443,760 USD 0 = 050 U0 iamea
T bt momcent ey She nat emount reced bipays e foe party b the wvest of delesit.
At Februany 29, 2024 the Serfes Trust had entered Into the following derhvathves:
Aaset Derlvrtives LlabTiry Cerbrrtives
Dwrhvarthves ShartamreTt Statmmat
ot Accounted for aa of Assarta wnd ol Assuts mnd
Huwidging Irstruments Uabilktles Loction Fair Valus Uabiiting Locatan Falr Valun
Ferward foreign cumensy  Ureeadined appreciation Unneslized depreclrtion
mchange cortracty on forwand forlga on forward fomelgn
{Currency Rk eurrency exchatgs Lsh 633,326  cumendy exchanpe [1.%4] {1843, 76T}

comracts contracts
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 15, 2024

CERIVATIVE FINANCAL BNSTRUMENTS {continued]
The effect of derivative instruments on the Statement of Operations for the year ended Febraary 19, 7024:

Changs In Linnel Bad

Location of Roafined Appradation or

Derhvathves Mot Accounted — Gain or [Less) Galn or (Loss) {Depreclation) en

ter i Hedging Inrtraments  an Derhethees on Dertvativen Dervithes

Forvenrnd fonelgn curmency Wit realined lossed on Torward Forelgn

enchange contracts srmency exchangs contracts;

{Currency Kak) change in wrealned spprecition ush {RoA0840) WED AR 000
on forward fonign curency eschangs contracts

MANAGEMENT FEES

The Manager receives, out of the assets of the Series Trust, a management fee of 2 total of DLES% per annum (0.30% per
annum in respect of fee for the Mamages and the (rmeestment Manager and 0.35% per annum In respect of fee for the Sub-
Imvestment Manager] of the Net Asset Value accrued on, srnd caloulated o5 ot, each Yaluntion Day and payable monthly in
arrears. In addidon, the Manager also reimburses, out of the assets of the Serles Trust, for any expensas Incurrad by it In
the proper performance of its powers and duties as permitted under the Master Trust Deed. During the year ended
February 25, 2024, the Manager earned fees of USD 351,471 of which USD 23,878 |3 sl cutstanding as of February 23,
2024,

The Manager pays the fees of the Investment Manager out of its fess. The Investmant Manager is responsible for paying
the fees af the Sub-imvestment Manager and any of the Irvestment Manager's delogates or other parties sppointed by the
Ivestrment Manager vo perform it functions in respect of the Sarkes Trust

CUSTODIAN AND SLPB-ADMIMISTRATOR'S FEES

The Custodian and Sub-Administrator recelves @ custody fee calculeted and paid monthly based on toml sssets and
transaction valuma,

The Custodian and Sub-Administrator recebves, out of the assets of the Seres Trust, an administration fee (Inchuding
transfor agent fea) calculated based on the Net Asset Value as ot each Valuation Day ot the following annual rate:

- 0.08% up to fand Including) USD 250 millon;

=0.07% up to {and including) USD 500 milion;

= 0.06% over USD 500 milllon

In addition o the above NAV based fee, there Is 3 transactioral based fee charged, which varies depanding on the volume
of transactions.

Such administration fie 15 payable monthly bn ammears, and subject to the minimum annusl fee of USD BO,000. In addition,
thie Custodian and Sub-Administrator also receives customary safekeeping fees and transaction charges. All out-ol-pocket
axpanses of the Custodian and Sub-Adminlstrator sre borme by the Serles Trust During the year ended February 29, 2024,
the Custodian and Sub-Administrator earmed fees of USD 135,358, of which USD 11,394 ks stll outstanding a% of February
25, 1024,

TRUSTEE FEES

Thi Trustee receives, out of the 2ssets of the Seres Trut, 3 combined fee at the rate of 0.015% per annum of the Net
Aszet Value sccrued on, and calculated o3 at, each Valuation Day and payable semb-annually In arrears, subject 1o &
minimum anoual fee of USD 15,000, During the year ended February 29, 2024, the Trustee earmed fees of USD 15,039, and
there was an amount of USD 21,331 stlll cutstand ing a5 of February 258, 2024,

AGENT COMPANY'S FEES

The Agent Company receives, out of the assets of the Serles Trust, a fee ot the rate of 0LOSX per annum of the Net Asset
Value accrued on, and calculated as 0%, each Valuation Day and payable quarterly in arrears. During the year ended
February 29, 2024, the Agent Compary earned fees of LISD 27,036, of which USD 12.002 ks still outssanding as of February
19, 028,
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 15, 2024

The Distributor receives, cut of the assets of the Serbes Trust, & fee at the rate of 0.65% per annum of the Met Asset Value
sccrued on, end calculsted as ot, each Valuation Day and payable quarterly in arrears. During the year ended February 29,
2024, tha Distributor samed foes of USD 351,471, of which USD 50,776 Is st outstanding as of February 29, 2024,

Thit costs and dxpensed in connection with the establiEhment of the Series Trust and the offering of the Units, together
with the esmblishment of the Trust, including the costs and expenses of preparing and printing amy prospectus or
explanatory brochures required, were estimated st lunch to amount to 8pproximately USD 180,000, Such costs and
expanses will be amortised within the first five (5} financial years of the Sarles Trust unless the Trustee decldes that some
pther method shall be applied. The Administrator recelves USD 1,500 per annwm for FATCA f CRS compliance senvices.

Thi Serles Trust's activities expose it to a variety of Arancial risks: markgt risk (including price risk, interest rate risk, and
currency risk], eredit risk and Bquldity risk.

Mgriort Rigk
All irrvestments present a risk of loss of caplital, The Investment Manager moderates this risk through a careful selection of
securithes and other Bnancial Ingtruments.

The Series Trust's investment management process is described In Mote 1. The primary determinant of the Series Trust's
ablity to meet Hs objectve of mid to long term capital appreclation while earming Income ls dependent on the
perfs e of its i in corporate bonds and notes, The Series Trust's owerall market positinns are monitored on
2 dally basis by the Serles Trust's Imvestment Manager.

Tha waluve of tha Serles Trust's Investments is affected by @ number of factors, inchuding but not limited to, changes in the
wider economry, financial and curmency markets, forelgn curmency exchange rates, interest rate movements and credit
ratings af debt Izsuers.

Tha Serles Trust may enter Imto foreard foreign curmency exchange comftracts which to varying degress represent a market
ik I excess of the amount reflected on the Seres Trust's Statement of Assets and Uabllides. The potional amount of the
contract represents the extent of the Serles Trust’s participation in these financlal Instrumaents. Market risks ssociated
with Such contracts Brige due 1o the possible movements in foreign exchangs rates underying these instruments.

Ortthesr market and cred it risks Include the possibility that there may ba an lliquid market for the contracts, that the changs
Tn the value of the cortract may not directly conrelate with changes in the value of the underying currencies or that the
counterparty o & forward contract defaults on Itz obligation to perform under the terma of the contract. The Serles Trust's
expasure to loss due to counterparty non-perfarmance on open forward foreign curmency exchange comrrects i limited to
tha unrealized appreclation inherent in such financlal Instruments which are recognized In the Statement of Assets and
Liabifities.

interest Rate Risk

The Series Trust's exposune to changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Series Trust's investments in debt securities
contracts. Interest rate fluctsations may also affect the falr value and pricing of derhvative Instruments purchased or soid
short by the Series Trust. The Irmestment Manager continuously monitors the Saries Tnst's exposure to Interest ate risk
ad this Serles Trust's overnll Irterest sendltivity on 3 ragular bashs.

Many financlal instruments used a floating rate based on the London Interbank Cffered Rate ["LIBOR), the offered rate at
which major Intermational banks @n obiein wholesale, unsecured funding. LIBOR was a significant factor In determining
the Series Trust's payment obligations under & derhvative Irvestment, the cost of financing to the Series Trust or an
Inwestment’s valug of retum to the Series Trust, and was used In other ways that affected the Series Trust's invesiment
performance. The United Kngdom's Financial Conduet Authority phased sut of LIBOR Although many LIBOR rates were
phased cut by the end of 2021, a selection of widely used USD UIBOR rates continued to be pubfshed through June 2033 in
order to assist with the transition. The Sedes Trust was exposed o finandial instrumants ted o LIBOA to determine
paymant obligations, financing tarms, hedging strategles or Immestment valug. The trandtion process away from LBOR and
wny increased volatlity and illiquidity in markets for, 3nd reduced effectiveness of new hedges placed against, instruments
witshse Tenms priviously induded LIBDR were nol matersl to the Series Trust.
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NEUB CORPORATE HYBRID SECURITIES FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
For the Year Ended February 15, 2024

FINAMCLAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit Risk

Crgdit rlsk represents the potential loss that the Series Trust would Incur if the counterparties or ksuers of debt securities
failed to perform pursuant to the terms of their obigations to the Seres Trust For eschange-traded comtracts, the
eschangs Bcts oS the couwnterparty to specfic trarsactions mnd, therefore, bears the risk of delivery to and from
counterparties of specific positions. The Series Trust's management does not consider that credit sk related t© open
derhathe contracts will have matmrial adverss effect on the fAnancial condition of the Series Trust.

While bath the LS. Bankruptcy Code snd the Securlties Investor Protection Act of 1970 seek to protect customer property
in the event of & failure, insalvency or liquidetion of an institution, there is no certainty that, in the event of a failure of sn
Instibution that has custochy of Serles Trust assets, the Serles Trust would not incur losses due (o its assats being unavallable
for 3 pericd of tme, ulimately less than full recovery of It assets, or both, Because all of the Series Trust's cash s in
custady with a single institution, such losses could be significant and could matertally kmpair the ability of the Sedes Trust
to achieve it investment objective. The Series Trust is subject to credit rizk to the extent that this institution may be
urabile tm fullill Its obligations to repay Bmounts cwed,

Liquidity Hisk
Investors should be gware that the value of Uinks might fil s well as rise, investment In the Series Trust imohees 3 degree
of rizk, there can ba no assurance that the Serhes Trust's Investment objectve will be achleved.

The Series Trust is exposed 1o daily repurchase of it Unis but management believes that the Series Trust has sefficent
resources to meet the presant and foresesable needs of its business operations and, If necessary, the liquidity to fund
repurchases and achieve 3 market position appropriately reflecting @ smaller capital base, This positon s monitored
continually by management to endang that the Serkes Trust has the abllity to meet Fs obligations.

At Felrumry 29, 2024, substantally all the Invertments of the Serles Trust ware treded In tha ovar-the-counter markat.

Currency Risk

Tha Serles Trust holds Investmants denominated in USD, which ks the Seres Trust's functional and presentational currency.
However, the Serfes Trust expects to hedge lapanese Yen, the value of the Seres Trust's net assets attributable to JFY
Clasis. As @ result, the Serbes Trust will incur gainsflosses on s forward foreign currency eschange contracts which are used
to hedge the IV Class net assels to Japanesa Yen, and such galns/losses are fully allocated to JPY Class. All such IPY
hedging gainsflosaes have been relected In the total returrs as presented in the Financlal Highlights and are Inciuded In
realtzed and unrealtzed galnsflosses n the Statement of Cperations. Refer to Mote 1 for further detalls on the Serkes Trust's
currency hedging strategy. The Investment Manager monltors the Serles Trust's currency exposure on a dally basks.

In tha nomal course of business, the Trustes on bahalf of the Sarles Trust may enter Into contracts that contaln a varlety
of representations and warranthes and which provide genaral indemnifications. Thi peneral Indemnifications apply not only
to the extent such representations and warranties ane untrue but also may cover third parties such as the Sedes Trust's
Adenbnlrtrated, Auditor of restment Manager for dalms related to the lervices performed for the Seres Trast The
Trustes's Maximum expasure under 0y such 3rrangements is unknawn, 35 exposure only Brises to the exntent futune daims
that have not yet ocourmed are made agalnst the Trustee. However, based on experience, the Trustee expects the risk of
loss b0 ba remote.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Management performed 2 subsequent events review up to June 7, 2024, which [ the date the Ananclal statements wers
available to be issued,

Effectier March 1, 2024 through June 7, 2024, there wene subscriptions of USD 85,577 and there were redemptions of USD
3,180,183 In respect of Class JPY Units. There wene distributions of USD 248,407 in respect of Class JPY Units,

Effective March 1, 2024 through Juna 7, 2024, there were subseriptions of USD 3,550,434 and there were redemptions of
LS 440,080 in respect of Class USD Units, There were distributions of LISD 254,065 in respect of Class USD Units.

Thare are no othar sigrificant ewents to report as they relate to the Seres Trust
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2025
101,329,115.97 14,673,469,284
47,334,681.42 6,854,535,216
53,994,434 .55 7,818,934,067
3,580,535
329,007
9.96 1,442

8,051
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2025 31
2025 2024
5,294,366 766,677 4,561,628 660,569
1,646,749 238,466 1,834,018 265,584
6,941,115 1,005,143 6,395,646 926,153
1,497,979 216,922 1,655,120 239,678
1,497,979 216,922 1,655,120 239,678
480,000 69,509 480,000 69,509
4,963,136 718,712 4,260,526 616,967
5,443,136 788,221 4,740,526 686,476
6,941,115 1,005,143 6,395,646 926,153
11
10 22
2025 11
129332

144.81
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2025 31
2025 2024
12,773,881 1,849,786 12,998,608 1,882,328
(11,819,837)  (1,711,631) (12,015,683)  (1,739,991)
954,044 138,155 982,925 142,337
(17,231) (2.,495) (104,049) (15,067)
936,813 135,660 878,876 127,270
(234,203) (33,915) (219,719) (31,818)
702,610 101,745 659,157 95,453
702,610 101,745 659,157 95,453

11

144.81
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( )  C ) ( )

¢y > C )

480,000 69,509 10,351,369 1,498,982 10,831,369 1,568,491
659,157 95,453 659,157 95,453
(6,750,000)  (977,468) (6,750,000) (977,468)
480,000 69,509 4,260,526 616,967 4,740,526 686,476
702,610 101,745 702,610 101,745
480,000 69,509 4,963,136 718,712 5,443,136 788,221
11
144.81
2025 31
2025 2024

702,610 101,745 659,157 95,453

16,998 2,461 98,264 14,230

234,203 33,915 219,719 31,818

233 34 5,785 838

954,044 138,155 982,925 142,337

187,269 27,118 58,583 8,483

(171,626) (24,853) 9,320 1,350

(219,719) (31,818) (27,715) (4,013)

(233) (34) (1,179) (171)

749,735 108,569 1,021,934 147,986

(6,750, 000) (977,468)

(6.,750,000) (977,468)

749,735 108,569 (5.728,066) (829,481)

4,561,628 660,569 10,387,958 1,504,280

(16,998) (2,461) (98,264) (14,230)

5,294,365 766,677 4,561,628 660,569

11
144.81
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12
2025 31
2025 2024
12,666,479 12,773,098
107,402 225,510
12,773,881 12,998,608
2025 2024
45,772 44,961
45,772 44,961
2025 2024
16,998 98,264
233 5,785
17,231 104,049
31
2025 2024
(234,203) (219,719)
(234,203) (219,719)
(234,203) (219,719)

2024 31
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2025 2024
936,813 878,876
2024 25
(234,203) (219,719)
(234,203) (219,719)
25.0 25.0
2025 2024
1,560,608 1,710,268
52,370
86,141 71,380
1,646,749 1,834,018
2025 2024
221,928 214,067
202,510 230,168
839,338 991,166
234,203 219,719
1,497,979 1,655,120
2025
31

30
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432,578 2024 700,040 2025 31 10
43 2024 64 43 2024
78
10
2025 31 2025 31
2025 31 @ ® ©
( ) ( ) ( )
793,638 59,016
5,075,949 489,301
2,302,911 241,397
624,356 49,624
11,448
105,235

8,913,537 839,338
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2024 31 2024 31
2024 31 a
@ O ©
¢ ¢ C
1,086,979 84,395
4,907,366 409,093
2,308,193 439,668
705,026 56,062 52,370
26,078 1,948
107,407
9,141,049 991,166 52,370
(a
(b
(c
(
2025 31 79,835 2024 79,609
11

https://www._smtg.jp/en/
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MNIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A5 AT 31 MARCH 2025

Note 2025 2024
UsD usp

Assets
Current Assels
Cash and cash eguivalents 5,294,366 4,561,628
Debtors T 1,646,749 1,834,018
Total Current Assets 6,941,115 6,395,646
Liabilities and Equity
Current Liabilities
Creditors ] 1,497,379 1,655,120
Total Current Liabilities 1,497,973 1,655,120
Equity
Capital and Resenves Attributable to Equity Holders
of the Company
Share capital 480,000 480,000
Retained earnings 4,963,136 4,260.526
Taotal Equity 5,443,136 4,740,526
Total Liabilities and Equity 6,941,115 6,395,646

The annexed notes from 1 to 11 form an integral part of these financial stalements.

These financial staternents on pages 10 to 22 were approved by the Board of Directors and autherised
for issue and signed on its behalf by

A

D Cruise
Direchor

11 July 2025

Company registered number: 129332
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MIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

Mote 2025 2024

UsD Usn
Revenue 3 12,773,881 12,598,608
Adminkstrative expenses 111,819,837} (12,015,683}
Operating profit 554,044 982,925
Other expenses 5 {17,231) {204,043}
Profit before income tax 936,813 878,876
Income tax ] 1734,203) (219,719}
Profit after income tax 702,610 659,157
Other Comprehensive Income far the yvear - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 702,610 659,157

All the Company's operations are classified as continuing.

The annexed notes from 1 to 11 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Share Retained
it R o Earnings Lot

5D uso UsD
Balance at 1 April 2023 480,000 10,351,369 10,831,368
Total comprehensive incom for
the year 650,157 B59,157
Dividend paid - (6,750,000} {6,750,000)
Balance at 31 March 2024 480,000 4,260,526 4,740,526
Tatal comprehensive income for
s 702,610 702,610
Balance at 31 March 2025 480,000 4,963,136 5,243,136

The annexed notes fram 1 to 11 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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MIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

MNate 2025 2024
UsD UsD
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Profit after tax 702,610 659,157
Adjustments for:
Met foreign exchange loss 5 16,998 98,264
Tax charge G 234,203 219,119
Interest expense 5 33 5,785
Operational cash flows before movements in
workdng capftal 954,044 582,925
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Decrease in receivables 187,269 58,583
{Decrease)/ increase in payables [171,626) 9,320
Net amounts paid to affilizte = group tax relief (219,713) (27,715}
Interast paid [233) {1,179}
et Cash Generated from Operating Activities 749,735 1,021,934
Finandng Activities
Dividend paid to equity holders {6, 750,000)
et Cash from Financing Activities {6,750,000)
Net increase/ [decrease) in Cash and Cash
Equivalents 749,735 {5,728,0656}
Cazh and cash equivalents, beginning of the year 4,561,628 10,387,958
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held {16,998) (98, 264)
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of the Year 5,294,365 4,561,628

The annexed notes from 1 ta 11 ferm an integral part of these financial statements.
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NIKKC AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

fote 1 - General information

Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited (“the Company™) is incorporated and domiciled in the Cayman
Islands. The address of the registered office s PO Box 200GT, Ugland House, South Chirch Strest,
Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands. The principal activities of the Company during the year were the
provision of investment advice and investment management services to third parties and other group
members. These financial statements have been prepared to ensure continued compliance by the
Company with the requirements of Chapter 3 of the Overseas Companies Regulations.

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Principles
The princigal accounting polices adopted are set oul below.

Basis of preparation

The Cempanys financial statements have been prepared in accerdance with UK-adopted international
accounting standards {UK-adopted IFRS). The accounting policies set out below have been applied
consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements.

The directors have adopted the going concern basis of preparation in preparing these financial
statements for the I'u]l:uwing reasons: the Company is profitable; the Company has a strong and highly
ligquid balance sheet including cash reserves of 55,204,366 as at 31 March 2025 which is adequate to
caver the relatively low-cost base (after excluding sub-advisory fees which are covered by revenues),
The directors have prepared profit forecasts which, together with the liguid reserves and low-cost
base, indicate that the Company has sufficient reserves 1o meet their liabilities for at least 12 months
fram the date of preparing these financial statements.

Based an the above, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate
reLources Lo continue its operations for at beast 12 menths from the date of these financlal statements,
Therefore, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing these accounts.

Mew accounting standards
The directors do not consider that any new accounting standards had a material impact on the
Company nthe cUrFent year,

Folowing a review of the upcoming accounting standards, the directors have assessed the anticipated
impact on the financial statements and concluded this to be minimal,

Measurement convention
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.
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NIKKD AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Principles [continued)

Estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires the directors to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the amounts reportec for assets and liabilities as at the batance sheet date and the amounts
reported for revenves and expenses during the year. The nature of estimation means that actual
outcomes could differ from those estimates. The assumptions and estimates, which are continuoushy
reviewed, are based on past experience and other factors, including expectations regarding tikely
developments in the future. At 31 March 2025 and 2024 there weere na material estimates or
assumprions.

Revenues

Cperating revenues inchude investment management, investment advisory and performance fees.
Cperating revenues are measured at the fale value of the cansideration received of receivable for
services provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts, trail fees, VAT and other sales
related taxes,

Investment management and atvisary fees and associated charges are recognised over time when
the services concernad are rendered. Investment management and sdvisory fees are calculated as a
percentage of assets under management. Performance fees are recognised at @ point in time when
they crystallise in the perbod inwhich they become due and collectable.

Administrative expenses
Admanistrative expenses are accounted for over the period the refated service is pravided.

Current and deferred income tax

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferres tax, Tax is recognised in the
statement of cumprehenslue income except to the extent that it relates to ltems recognised directly
in equity, in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable mcome or loss for the year, using
tax rabes enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adiistment 1o tax
payable n respect of prevbous years.

The Company may utilise current tax credits arising on lasses in other Group entities against its tax
charges.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and labilities in the statement of inancial pasitian and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax is accounted for using the statement of
financial position liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

140/196



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

KIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED
MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

Note 2 = Summary of Significant Accounting Principles {continued)

Fargign currencies
The funclional and presentational cuirendy of the Company is US dollars [5).

Transactions in currencies other than US dollars are recorded at the rates of exchange prevailing on
the dates of the transactions. At each bafance sheet date manetary assets that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Mon-monetary
assets and Babdlities carried at fair value that are denominated In forelgn currencies are franslated at
the rates prevailing at the date when fair value was determined. Gains and losses arising on
retranstation are included in net prafit or loss for the period, except for exchange differences arising
on non-monetary assets and liapilities where the changes in fair value sre recognised directly inequity.

Financial instruments

The Company's financial instruments comprise cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables,
and trade and other payables, These are classified and measured in accordance with IFRS 9 Einancial
Instruments,

{f) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand. Instruments are held to mest sharts
term cash commitments and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes invalue. Cash earns interest
at market rates dependent on the size of the balance, Finance incoma is acerued on cash and cash
equivalents on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the applicable interest
rate.

{ii} Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables include amounts due for management, advisary and performance fees
and amounts due from customers and others. Al trade and other receivables are repayable on
demand or within one year. They are recorded In the statement of financial position at amertised
cost, reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Amounts owed by
group undertakings are wnsecured, interast free and have no fixed tarms of repayment.

{iii} Trode and ather payables

Trade and other payables include amounts dee for investment management, advisory fees and
performance fees and amounts due to vendors and others, initially and subseguently recorded at
amortised cost. Al trade and ather payables are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangement entered Into, They are payvable on demand or within ane year and are
fecorded on the statement of financial position at cost, Amounts owed 1o group undertakings are
unsecured, interest free and have no ficed terms of repayment,

{le) Impairment of finoncial assets

The Company evaluates potential credit lasses on all financial assets that are measured at amortisad
cost, Factors considered in determining whether a default Is likely or possible include whether a
payment is overdue (and the length of that period), any known detericration in the eradit quality of a
client! counterparty of other issues that could adversely affect a client's/ counterparty’s credit quality.
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MIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accounting Principles (continued)

[t} impairment of financial assets feentinued)
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For financial assets where there are no known issues affecting credit quality, expected credit losses
are calculated based on the lossas that are expected to be incurred over a rolling twelve-month period.
Given the nature of the Company’s financial assets (i.e. mostly cash at bank), the directers consider

there to be a very low credit risk,

For any financial assets where the contractual payment [s more than 30 days past due, the default
positien is to assume an incréase in credit risk. However, default levels In the past have been
immaterial and there were no fee receivables deemed past due as at 31 March 2025,

MNote 3 - Revenue from Contracts with Customers

All revenue relates to the pravision of investment advice and investment management services and

arises In the Cayman Islands.

Investment management and advisory fees
Performance fees
Total

Mote 4 = Auditor's Remuneration

Fees payable to Compary’'s Auditor for the audit
of the company financial statements
Total

Mote 5— Other Expenses

Het foreign exchange loss
Interast Expense
Total
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2025 2024
usn uso
12,666,479 12,773,088
107 402 235,510
12,773,881 12,998,608
2025 2024
uso usp
45,772 44,961
45,772 44,961
2025 2024
UsD usD
16,938 98,264
243 5,785
17,231 104,049




MNIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED
MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

MNote 6 — Taxation

Taxes on income for the year ended 31 March 2025 and 2024 were as follows:

Current Tax
UK corporation tax at 25% (2024: 25%)
Total Current Income Tax Expense

Tatal Income Tax Expense
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2025 2024

usD ush
(234,203) {219,713)
(234,203) [219,719)
(234,203) (219,719)

A reconciliation between the amount of Lax expense at the effective statutory rate and taxes on
income as reflected in continuing operations fior the years ended 31 March 2025 and 2024 is presented

below:

Tax Reconcillation
Frofit before taxes

Profit multiplied by the standard rate of corpocation tax in

the LE: 25% (2024: 25%)
Total Income Tax Expense

Effective tax rate for the year

515,813 878,876
{234,203} [219.719)
(234,203) (219,719}

2505 25.0%

The Company uses current tax credit from other entities in the Nikko Group to offset the Company’s

CHFTENE Tax eXpense.

The amount due to affiliates in relation to group tax relief is included as a payable in the statement of

financial position, note 8.

Note 7 - Debtors

ACcounts receivable

Amounts receivable fram affiliates
Accrued income and prepaid expense
Total
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usoD uso
1,560,608 1,710,268
: 52,370
86,141 71,380
1,646,749 1834018
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MNIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

Note 8 — Creditors

2025 2024

usp usD
Accrued expenses and deflerred income 231428 214,067
Accounts payable 02,510 230,168
Amounts payable to affiliates 839,338 991,166
Amounts payable to affiliates - group tax relief 234,203 213,719
Total 1,497,979 1,655,120

Note 9 = Financlal Risk Factors
The main risks associated with the Company's financlal assets and Nabilities are set out below:

Credit risk

Credit risk is defined as the risk of financial loss due 1w a counterparty’s faslure to honour its ebligation
principally in relation to transactions where the Company provides goods of services on deferred
terms and where it invests or deposits surplus cash. The directors do not believe that the Company is
materially exposed to credit risk as its sales debtors are managed group funds and therefore
management and performance fees receivable are governed by It agreements with these funds. To
mitigate any residual risk of these assets failing to be dellvered, the directors ensure that the terms of
these agreements in relation to payments of management and performance fees are adhered Lo by
manitoring the Company’s aged debtor analysis against the agreed senvice level agreements.

The Company adopts the policy of dealing with customers of appropriate credit histary, For other
financial assers, the Company adopts the policy of dealing with financial institutbons and other
counterparties with high credit ratings. There are no financial assets past due andf or impaired as at
31 March 2025 and 2024. Trade receivables are due at least quarterly, and are normally settled within
30 days of their due date. There are no overdue trade recelvables at the balance sheet date.

Further, with regard to bank deposits, the Company only deposits money with approved
counterparties on agreed tesms,
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NIKKD AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

Note 9= Financial Risk Factors (continued)

Market risk

Market risk [or systemic risk) is defined as that risk which Is common to an entire class of assets af
liabilities whereby their value can fluctuate simply because of economic changes or other events that
impact large portlons of the market. The directors do not believe that the Company is exposed to
material market risk as the assets the Company manages are held by and for the benefit of fund
holders through separate Iegal entities.

Currency risk

Currency risk is defined as the risk that the value of assets and liabllities denominated in currencies
other than the functional currency of the Comparny will change in value due to movements in foreign
excthange rates. The Company i exposed to currency risk arising from cash balances and fees
recaivable invarious currencies.

The Company's total exposure to currency risk arising from cash balances, payables and fees
receivable in other currencies is 5432578 [2024: $700,040). As at 31 March 2025, had these
currencics strengthened/ weakened by 10% against the USD, the total exposure would have been
lower by $43k {2024: $64k)/ increased by 543k {2024: 573k).

Liguidity risk and financial solvency risk

Liguidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations
as they fall due. The directors approach to managing this risk is to ensure that the Company has
sufficient liguidity vo meet its labilities when due, both under normal and stressed conditions.

Capital management

The Company's capital position s manitored on an ongoing basis to ensure that it is adeguate, There
are na externally imposed capital reguiremendts.
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Note 10 — Related Party Transactions

Transactions petween the Company and related parties are disclosed below:

Year ended 31 March 2025

Mikka AM Americas, Ing,
Mikko AM Europe Lid,
Mikko AM Co., Ltd.
Mikko AM Asia Lrd,
Mikka AM Hong Kang
Highwater Limited
Total

Year ended 31 March 2024

Mikko AM Americas, Inc.
Mikko AM Europe Ltd.
MNikko AM Co., Ltd.
fikke AM Asia Ltd,
Nikka AM Hong Kong
Highwater Limited
Total

NIKKED AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
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Operating Creditor as at 31 Debtors as at 31
Expenses [a) March 2025 (b} March 2025 (c)
UsD usD UsD
793,638 59,016 -
5,075,545% 434,301 .
2,302,911 241,397
624,356 49,624
11,448 -
105,235 .
8,913,537 839,338
Operating Creditor as at 31 Debtaors as at 31
Expenses (a) March 2024 {b) March 2024 (c)
usp UsoD usp
1,086,979 84,395
4,907,366 a0a,063 =
2,308 193 A39,668 =
705,026 56,062 52,3710
26,078 1,948 .
107 407 . -
5,141,085 991,166 52,370

{a) Operating expenses paid to related parties (excluding Highwater Limited) are payable under
invesiment management agresments, or equivalent, and are for fund management services.
Operating expenses paid 10 Highwater Limited relate to director, company secretarial and other
services provided by Highwater Limited to the Company,

(k) The ameounts outstanding, in the above table relate to operating eupenses, are unsecured and will
be settled In cash. Mo guaraniees have been glven or received, Mo provisions have been made
for doubtful debts in respect of the amounts owed by related parties.

[c} The amounts owed are unsecured and will be settled in cash, Mo guarantees have been given or

recahved,

{d} Amounts payable 1o Nikko Asset Management Eurcpe Lid relating 1o group tax refiel are not
included In the amounts cutstanding in the above table but are included in the statement of

financial position, note 8,

The directors are the key management personnel of the Company. Remuneration of direetars far the
year ended 31 March 2025 was 579,835 (2024: 575,609}

Nikko Asset Management Co., Ltd is the intermediate parent company of the Company. Mikko Asset
Management Americas, Inc., Nikko Asset Management Europe Lid., Nikko Asset Management Asia Led
and Nikko Asset Management Hong Kong are fellow subsidiaries of the Company, Highwater Linited
is controlled by Individuals who are Directors of Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited.
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NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED
MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

Mote 11 = Ultimate Holding Company

The Campany's immediate parent Is Nikke AM Global Holdings Limited, a company located in the
United Kingdom. The Company is  subsidiary undertaking of Sumitomao Mitsui Trust Group, Inc which
is the uitimate parcnt company in Japan.

The: largest group in which the results of the Company are consolidated is that headed by Sumitomo
Mitsul Trust Group, Inc., 1-1-2 Marunouchi, Chivada-ku, Tokyo, Japan. The consolidated financial

stayerments of this gmup are available to the public https:/fwww smig ipfenl.
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@
CIBC
CIBC Caribbean Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
2025 37,187,496.96 53 8,512
CIBC 1965
@
Brown Brothers Harriman & Co.
2024 12 1,060,000,000 1,534 9,860
(©))
UFJ
2025 405
(O]
2025 173 63
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®
LLC
Neuberger Berman Investment Advisers LLC)
2024 12 667,000,000 965 8,827
@
90
@
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Report of independent auditors

To CIBC Caribbean Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
solely in its capacity as the Trustee of NEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund (the
““Series Trust””), which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the portfolio of
investments, as of February 28, 2025, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net
assets, and of cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended, including the related
notes (collectively referred to as the ““financial statements””).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Series Trust as of February 28, 2025, and the results of its operations,
changes in its net assets, and its cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (US GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors
~ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are required
to be independent of the Series Trust and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we

have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management 1is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Series Trust”s ability
to continue as a going concern for one year after the date the financial statements are available to
be issued.
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Auditors® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors™ report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in
the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial

statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust”s internal control. Accordingly, no such

opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Series Trust®s ability to continue as a going concern

for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-

related matters that we identified during the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
July 9, 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory financial statements of Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited (““the Company””) for
the year ended 31 March 2025 which comprise the statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial
Position, Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statement and related notes, including the accounting
policies in note 2. The non-statutory financial statements have been prepared for the reasons set out in note 1.

In our opinion the non-statutory financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company ”s affairs as at 31 March 2025 and of its profit for
the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (““ISAs (UK)*?) and the terms
of our engagement letter dated 18 March 2025. Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the Company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and
appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the non-statutory financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the Company®s
financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material
uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at least
a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory financial statements (““the going concern period’”).

In our evaluation of the directors® conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Company s business
model and analysed how those risks might affect the Company s financial resources or ability to continue
operations over the going concern period.

Our conclusions based on this work:

we consider that the directors® use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the non-
statutory financial statements is appropriate; and

we have not identified and concur with the directors” assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty
related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the
Company*s ability to continue as a going concern for the going concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes

that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions are
not a guarantee that the Company will continue in operation.
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Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (““fraud risks””) we assessed events or conditions that
could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk
assessment procedures included:

enquiring of directors and inspection of policy documentation as to the Company ”s high-level policies and
procedures to prevent and detect fraud, as well as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or
alleged fraud; and

reading Board meeting minutes.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of fraud
throughout the audit.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account our overall knowledge of the control environment, we
perform procedures to address the risk of management override of controls, in particular the risk that management
may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries. On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud
risk related to revenue recognition because the calculation of the revenue is non-judgmental and straightforward,
with limited opportunity for manipulation.

We did not identify any additional fraud risks.

We also performed procedures including identifying journal entries to test based on risk criteria and comparing
the identified entries to supporting documentation. These included all post-closing journals.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement related to non-compliance with laws and regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the
financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience, and through discussion with the directors
and other management (as required by auditing standards), and from inspection of the Company"s regulatory and
legal correspondence and discussed with the directors and other management the policies and procedures regarding
compliance with laws and regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of non-
compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including
financial reporting legislation (including related companies legislation), and we assessed the extent of
compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement items.

Secondly, the Company is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance
could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the
imposition of fines or litigation or the loss of the Company®s authority to operate. We identified the following
areas as those most likely to have such an effect: certain aspects of company legislation recognising the
financial nature of the Company"s activities and its legal form.

Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations
to enquiry of the directors and other management and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any.
Therefore, if a breach of operational regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence,
an audit will not detect that breach.
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Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit
in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed noncompliance with laws and regulations
is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited
procedures required by auditing standards would identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit
procedures are designed to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing noncompliance or
fraud and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the Directors Report. Our opinion on the
non-statutory financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an
audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our non-
statutory financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with
the non-statutory financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified
material misstatements in the other information.

Directors”™ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the non-statutory financial statements, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such internal
control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Company s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor s
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the non-statutory financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC~s website at
www._frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
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The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It has been
released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole
(save for the Company *s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior written consent.

Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company ”s needs at the
time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any party wishing to
acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to rely on our report (or any part of it) will do
so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability
in respect of our report to any other party.

Carla Cassidy (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

London E14 5GL

11 July 2025
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Report of independent auditors

To FirstCaribbean International Bank and Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
solely in its capacity as the Trustee of NEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of NEUB Corporate Hybrid Securities Fund (the
““Series Trust””), which comprise the statement of assets and liabilities, including the portfolio of
investments, as of February 29, 2024, and the related statements of operations, of changes in net
assets, and of cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended, including the related
notes (collectively referred to as the ““financial statements””).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Series Trust as of February 29, 2024, and the results of its operations,
changes in its net assets, and its cash flows and the financial highlights for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (US GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors
~ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We are required
to be independent of the Series Trust and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we

have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management 1is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Series Trust”s ability
to continue as a going concern for one year after the date the financial statements are available to
be issued.

188/196



EDINETOOOO
OO000DO00oDOo00DOo0OooOodnE27078)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Auditors® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors™ report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with US GAAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in
the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial

statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with US GAAS, we:

Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Series Trust”s internal control. Accordingly, no such

opinion is expressed.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Series Trust®s ability to continue as a going concern

for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-

related matters that we identified during the audit.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
June 7, 2024
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR®S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF NIKKO AM GLOBAL CAYMAN LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the non-statutory financial statements of Nikko AM Global Cayman Limited (““the Company””) for
the year ended 31 March 2024 which comprise the statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Financial
Position, Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash Flow Statement and related notes, including the accounting
policies in note 2. The non-statutory financial statements have been prepared for the reasons set out in note 1.

In our opinion the non-statutory financial statements:

give a true and fair view of the state of the Company s affairs as at 31 March 2024 and of its profit for
the year then ended; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (““ISAs (UK)*?) and the terms
of our engagement letter dated 12 April 2024.  Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our
ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the Company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and
appropriate basis for our opinion.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the non-statutory financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not
intend to liquidate the Company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the Company®s
financial position means that this is realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material
uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over its ability to continue as a going concern for at least
a year from the date of approval of the non-statutory financial statements (““the going concern period’”).

In our evaluation of the directors® conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Company s business
model and analysed how those risks might affect the Company s financial resources or ability to continue
operations over the going concern period.

Our conclusions based on this work:

we consider that the directors® use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the non-
statutory financial statements is appropriate; and

we have not identified and concur with the directors” assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty
related to events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the
Company*s ability to continue as a going concern for the going concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes

that are inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions are
not a guarantee that the Company will continue in operation.
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Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations — ability to detect

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud (““fraud risks””) we assessed events or conditions that
could indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud. Our risk
assessment procedures included:

enquiring of directors and inspection of policy documentation as to the Company ”s high-level policies and
procedures to prevent and detect fraud, as well as whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or
alleged fraud; and

reading Board meeting minutes.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of fraud
throughout the audit.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account our overall knowledge of the control environment, we
perform procedures to address the risk of management override of controls, in particular the risk that management
may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries. On this audit we do not believe there is a fraud
risk related to revenue recognition because the calculation of the revenue is non-judgmental and straightforward,
with limited opportunity for manipulation.

We did not identify any additional fraud risks.

We also performed procedures including identifying journal entries to test based on risk criteria and comparing
the identified entries to supporting documentation. These included all post-closing journals.

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and Regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the
financial statements from our general commercial and sector experience, and through discussion with the directors
and other management (as required by auditing standards), and from inspection of the Company"s regulatory and
legal correspondence and discussed with the directors and other management the policies and procedures regarding
compliance with laws and regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of non-
compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including
financial reporting legislation (including related companies legislation), and we assessed the extent of
compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related financial statement items.

Secondly, the Company is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance
could have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the
imposition of fines or litigation or the loss of the Company®s authority to operate. We identified the following
areas as those most likely to have such an effect: certain aspects of company legislation recognising the
financial nature of the Company"s activities and its legal form.

Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and regulations
to enquiry of the directors and other management and inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any.
Therefore, if a breach of operational regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence,
an audit will not detect that breach.
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Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some
material misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit
in accordance with auditing standards. For example, the further removed noncompliance with laws and regulations
is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited
procedures required by auditing standards would identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit
procedures are designed to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing noncompliance or
fraud and cannot be expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the Directors Report. Our opinion on the
non-statutory financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an
audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our non-
statutory financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with
the non-statutory financial statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work, we have not identified
material misstatements in the other information.

Directors”™ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 5, the directors are responsible for: the preparation
of the non-statutory financial statements, which are intended by them to give a true and fair view; such internal
control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of non-statutory financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Company s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor®s responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the non-statutory financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditor s
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the non-statutory financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC~s website at
www._frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.
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The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report has been prepared for the Company solely in accordance with the terms of our engagement. It has been
released to the Company on the basis that our report shall not be copied, referred to or disclosed, in whole
(save for the Company *s own internal purposes) or in part, without our prior written consent.

Our report was designed to meet the agreed requirements of the Company determined by the Company ”s needs at the
time. Our report should not therefore be regarded as suitable to be used or relied on by any party wishing to
acquire rights against us other than the Company for any purpose or in any context. Any party other than the
Company who obtains access to our report or a copy and chooses to rely on our report (or any part of it) will do
so at its own risk. To the fullest extent permitted by law, KPMG LLP will accept no responsibility or liability
in respect of our report to any other party.

KPMG LLP

Chartered Accountants
15 Canada Square
London E14 5GL

16 July 2024
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